
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee

Enquiries to: Caroline Denyer
Telephone: 01706 924717
Date: Friday, 17 June 2016

Dear Councillor

Audit and Governance Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee 
to be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Monday, 27th June 2016 commencing at 
6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Audit and Governance Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Andy Bell
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Ann Taylor
Andrew Underdown

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Borough Council

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Monday, 27 June 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 4 - 7

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 21st March 2016. 

3.  Presentation - Counter Fraud 

4.  Internal Audit - Quarter 4 Report 2015/16 8 - 28

5.  Internal Audit - Annual Report 2015/16 29 - 47

6.  Internal Audit - Annual Fraud Report 2015/16 48 - 67

7.  RBC Audit Plan 2015-16 - FINAL 68 - 88

8.  RBC 2016-17 fee letter FINAL 89 - 92

9.  Risk Management Annual Report 2015/16 93 - 104

10.  Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2015/16 105 - 115

11.  Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-
Assessment 

116 - 126



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday 21st March 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor O'Rourke (Chair); Councillors Bell, Butterworth, Dutton, 
James Gartside, Heakin, Joinson, Rashid; A. Taylor and A. Underdown (Independent 
Persons)

OFFICERS:  D. Wilcock (Assistant Director – Resources), V. Crossland (Assistant 
Director – Resources), I. Corbridge, M. Nixon, J. Murphy and A. James (Resources 
Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  S. Robson (STAR Procurement) G. Mills and D. Watson 
(Grant Thornton)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
26 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
27 DECIDED – that the Minutes of the meeting held on 7th December 2016 
be approved as a correct record.

STAR PROCUREMENT - PRESENTATION
28 The Committee received a presentation from Sharon Robson, Director of 
Procurement at STAR (Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale) Procurement.

The presentation gave detailed information in relation to the following areas:-
 STAR update;
 Update from the last year;
 Working with Partners; 
 Delivering for Rochdale – Balanced Scorecard

 Compliance
 Savings
 Social Value
 Customer Satisfaction

 Opportunities for Rochdale;
 The future;
 Leading for Rochdale;

Members of the Committee asked that copies of the presentation be circulated for 
information.

DECIDED – that Sharon Robson be thanked for her presentation on STAR 
procurement.

GRANT THORNTON - 2014-2015 RBC GRANTS LETTER
29 The Committee considered a letter issued by Grant Thornton, which provided 
details of the Certification work for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ended 31 
March 2015.

DECIDED – that the letter from Grant Thornton relating to Certification work for 
Rochdale Borough Council for year ended 31 March 2015 be noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



GRANT THORNTON - RBC AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE
30 The Committee considered a report on the progress being made by Grant 
Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors. 

The report also included a summary of emerging national issues and developments 
for the Committee to consider.

DECIDED – that (1) the report on the progress Grant Thornton in respect of 
their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors be noted;

(2) the summary of emerging national issues and developments be 
noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT - QUARTER 3 REPORT 2015/16
31 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources which 
summarised the work of the Internal Audit team during the third quarter of 2015/16.

This report was submitted to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of 2015/16 on all Services 
within RBC. The work of RBC Internal Audit was governed by the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

DECIDED – that the Internal Audit – Quarter 3 Report 2015/2016 be noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17
32 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources which set 
out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17 which had been developed in 
accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and with close liaison with both the 
Leadership Team and Senior Management to identify and evaluate the key areas of 
risk. This would provide appropriate coverage of Council services in order to ensure 
that an independent opinion can be given on the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes at the end of the year. The Audit Plan also 
provided for flexibility to allow for new and emerging areas of risk to be evaluated 
during the course of the year. The report therefore sought to inform Audit and 
Governance Committee, in the context of the Members being charged with the 
overall responsibility for governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal 
Audit to facilitate approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17.

DECIDED – that the Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 be approved.

RISK MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 3 2015/16 PROGRESS REPORT
33 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources which 
summarised Risk Management activities during the period from the date of the 
previous committee meeting on 7 December 2015. 

The report was to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance with 
their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management activities. The work of RBC Risk Management was an ongoing 
requirement from the Accounts and Audit Regulations to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS), with Risk Management processes being an integral 
part of the AGS. 

DECIDED – that the Risk Management – Quarter 3 2015/16 progress report be 
noted.

Page 5



EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE
34 The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which provided an update on the current position on 
implementation of the revised Employee Code of Conduct.

As part of a review of the Councils Constitution, it became apparent that the 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Officers had not been reviewed since 2002 and there 
was a need for a fundamental review of the Code. The Monitoring Officer and officer 
colleagues prepared a simplified Code, in a user- friendly format which addressed 
the Nolan Principles, Equality Act duties, political neutrality, personal interests and 
outside commitments, electronic communications, information security.  

On 7th December 2015, the Committee had approved the amended Employee Code 
of Conduct and authorised its implementation. The revised code had now been 
incorporated into the Council’s published Constitution and included in HR Policies 
and Procedures published on the Council’s intranet and in the Council’s Policy 
Centre.  Employees were informed of the requirements of the revised Employee 
Code of Conduct by a global email circulated on 3rd March 2016 with a link to the 
Employee Code of Conduct, a copy of which was appended to the report.

Members of the Committee suggested that it would be useful to have sight of the 
Communications and Engagement Plan for the revised Code of Conduct at a future 
meeting.

DECIDED – that the implementation of the revised Employee Code of Conduct 
be noted.

MEMBER’S CODE OF CONDUCT: UPDATE ON CURRENT COMPLAINTS
35 The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which provided an update in relation to complaints 
made pursuant to the Members’ Code of Conduct.

Under the Council’s Constitution, the Audit & Governance Committee is responsible 
for monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct. The report was 
intended to provide an overview of the complaints received in terms of numbers, brief 
details and outcomes.

DECIDED – that the update on complaints made in relation to the Members 
Code of Conduct be noted.

SCHEME OF DELEGATION
36 The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Director – Legal, 
Governance and Workforce which sought confirmation of the Scheme of Delegation 
to Officers as it related to the initiation of Traffic Regulation Order procedures.

The Scheme of Delegation to Officers provides for the “Initiation of the Traffic 
Regulation Order Procedures, on all category of highway, for all types of traffic 
regulation order” to be delegated to Director of Neighbourhoods in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for strategic roads or the Township Chair and local ward 
Councillors on non-strategic roads.

It had recently come to light that the delegations as listed omit reference to off street 
car parking locations, even though the off street element is suggested at by the 
inclusion of the words “for all types of traffic regulation order”.  It was interpreted that 
these words were indicative of the delegation covering all traffic regulation orders, 

Page 6



whether on the highway or not.  It was also considered that the appropriate level of 
delegation be to the Director of Neighbourhoods in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder, as the fee levels for car parks are established by the Cabinet through the 
annual consideration of discretionary fees and charges process. It was therefore 
recommended that the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be amended accordingly for 
clarification purposes.

DECIDED – that the Scheme of Delegation to Officers as it relates to the 
initiation of Traffic Regulation Order procedures be amended as detailed within 
the submitted report.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
37 DECIDED – that this item be withdrawn.

APPENDIX 1 - MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT
38 DECIDED – that this item be withdrawn.

Page 7



Subject: Internal Audit - Quarter 4 Report 
2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: Tel: 01706925452

1 Purpose of Report

1.1      This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the fourth quarter of 
2015/16.

2 Recommendations

2.1       Report for information.

3 Background

3.1      This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance with their 
work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit 
coverage during the fourth quarter of 2015/16 on all Services within RBC. The work of 
RBC Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Alternatives considered

3.2       Not applicable.

4 Financial Implications

4.1      If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be exposed to 
the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during reviews and 
therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and governance.

5  Legal Implications

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly throughout 
this period of significant change.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1       The only implications on risk are those issues which have been highlighted by Internal 
Audit during the quarter. In this regard, these risks will be mitigated by completion of 
the actions agreed with management and summarised within this report.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1       Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10. Risk Based Audit Approach

10.1 Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal control 
environment, risk management and governance processes for the Council as a whole, 
as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. A risk based approach is taken within 
individual audit reviews, embracing operational and management controls and the 
wider business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 

10.2 In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on 
how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are 
as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control systems in operation are 
in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, opportunities exist to 
improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks effectively.

10.3 In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with the assurance 
that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis, any ‘red’ 
reports on which we can provide only limited assurance will be highlighted within 
section 12 of this report. These will be subject to specific discussion and challenge by 
Members with senior officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will 
perform a formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and Governance 
Committee with our findings.

10.4 In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and medium 
priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm completion once the due 
dates have passed. Any delays in implementation will be reported to the Committee for 
further consideration. If some of the recommendations have not yet been actioned, 
Internal Audit will request reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by 
which the action should be completed. The current status of the implementation of 

Page 9



audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is highlighted within 
Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. Whilst in some 
cases implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed dates, Internal 
Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays incurred and will 
continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates proposed by management. 
As such, there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at this stage.

10.5 Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal responses to 
recommendations raised are received within one month of the issue date. Internal 
Audit actively follows up with management via an escalation process to ensure that the 
reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner. At present, there are no draft 
reports where responses are still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

11 Planned Work Completed During Quarter Four
11.1 Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during quarter 

four which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion. Key areas for 
improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific focus on any agreed 
actions designated as high priority.

12 Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up Audits
Cash Income – Environmental Management Follow Up Audit
  (Neighbourhoods – Mark Widdup)

12.1   The Environmental Management Service has responsibility for a wide variety of 
services within the Borough. Income is collected from many of these services and this 
audit focused on the effectiveness of cash control arrangements in a number of these 
service areas. The audit undertaken in quarter 3 of 2015/16 focused on establishing 
whether cash due is identified, collected fully, receipted and banked securely and in a 
timely manner.
 

12.2   As reported to Audit and Governance Committee on 21 March 2016, Internal Audit 
concluded that only limited assurance could be given on the adequacy of overall 
controls over cash income. Whilst no financial losses were specifically identified, the 
lack of effective cash control arrangements across many areas of the Service 
increased the risk of financial loss and fraud. This included income collected not being 
matched against expectations, income banked not being matched against general 
ledger postings and any identified anomalies not being adequately followed up.

12.3   A follow up audit was completed in quarter 4 of 2015/16 to establish whether the 
agreed recommendations had been implemented by the agreed date, specifically 
focusing on the 6 high and 7 medium priority recommendations. Internal Audit 
concluded from the testing undertaken and discussions held with management that all 
these recommendations had been completed and that a revised audit opinion of 
substantial assurance was now appropriate.  

   
12.4    The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B.

13   Unplanned work

Multi Faith Partnership
  (Neighbourhoods – Mark Widdup)

13.1 Many towns and cities across the country have Multi Faith Partnerships which bring 
together individuals from different faiths and operate to some extent as local 

Page 10



community organisations. Faith groups are an important part of the community sector, 
having a valuable contribution to make in building a sense of local community. 
Organisations of this kind can be a great help to a local authority in providing a 
structured point of connection with the faith communities in the Borough. Rochdale has 
its own Multi Faith Partnership, and the Council currently works with the organisation 
and provides a small amount of funding to it. As the Council is looking to further 
develop this relationship, Internal Audit was requested to assess how processes 
adopted within Rochdale compared with best practice.

13.2 The assessment was undertaken through a comparison with Oldham who were cited 
as a good example of an effective organisation and were willing to share practices. 
Whilst the benchmarking review did identify many similarities between the 
organisations, it did identify some areas where Rochdale’s inter faith forum could 
enhance overall governance and accountability of the organisation specifically in 
relation to:

 Transparency of activity and outcomes through public access to meetings and 
agendas and use of a website;

 Developing wider links within the community and with the press to enhance the 
profile of the group’s activities; and

 Developing communication with the Council to enhance visibility of activities to 
elected Members.

These areas were highlighted to the relevant officer to take forward with the 
organisation.

Rochdale Development Agency (RDA)
  (Economy – John Searle)

13.3 With effect from January 2016, RDA became a Rochdale Council Controlled 
Company, with ownership of the former limited company now being vested with RBC. 
Internal Audit provided input into various processes leading up to the establishment of 
this new relationship with RDA including the following:

 Input into financial due diligence;
 Review of results of legal due diligence;
 Review of ‘reserved matters’ and scheme of delegation; and
 Overall governance.

 
14 Internal Audit Performance Measures

14.1 The table below shows actual performance as at 31 March 2016 against Internal Audit 
targets for the fourth quarter, including the actuals for 2014/15. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q4 

2014/15

Actual 
 Year 

2014/15

Target 
Q4

2015/16

Actual 
Q4

2015/16
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding overheads £229 £224 £249 £232

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 199 198 183 194

3. Percentage of audit plan completed (95% for full 
year)

96% 96% 95% 96%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued within 14 
days of completion of the audit

100% 100% 98% 100%

Page 11



Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q4 

2014/15

Actual 
 Year 

2014/15

Target 
Q4

2015/16

Actual 
Q4

2015/16
Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations accepted 100% 100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top 
two categories (i.e. very good & good)

100% 100% 97% 98%

  
14.2 All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year.  
14.3 In spite of increases in salary related costs, the overall cost per audit day came in ahead 

of target due largely due to increased productivity within the team, with an ongoing 
commitment to reduce administrative time. This in turn led to chargeable days coming in 
ahead of target, in spite of the negative impact of unpaid days arising from the savings 
programme and an increase in bank holidays within the financial year due to timing. 

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 12



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter four

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Carers 
Assessments

The Care Act 2014 placed a duty on local authorities to carry out an 
assessment of carers needs in order to determine whether those needs 
are eligible for support services. Carers eligible for full support are entitled 
to funded social care support against identified need up to the value of 
£250. As a consequence, carers initial assessments were completed 
throughout 2015 and this audit sought to provide assurance over the 
effectiveness of these arrangements.

The control systems in place appeared to be generally sound. Actions 
were agreed to make some improvements to existing processes to ensure 
assessments align with current legislation, any changes to assessments 
must be fully explained on the system and supporting documentation 
retained to support all assessments. Effort will also be directed towards 
ensuring more carers assessments are completed within a timely manner.

Adequate M – 4,
L - 1 

P
age 13



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Controcc and 
other Payments

Adult Care Service makes payments to care providers in respect of non-
residential care (home care, day care and respite care) received by service 
users. There are also cash payments made direct to service users 
enabling them to manage their own care packages. The majority of these 
payments are made through the Controcc system. Expenditure on non-
residential care for 2015/16 was in the region of £27 million. The objective 
of the audit was to evaluate the processes and controls associated with 
non-residential care payments in terms of accuracy, timeliness, 
authorisation and appropriateness of spend. 

Our audit encompassed the wide range and methods of payments made 
by Adult Care. The adequate audit assurance opinion reflects the fact that, 
although we have no concerns over many of the processes reviewed, a 
number of improvements were identified. The actions agreed primarily 
related to ensuring payment was made only for actual hours of care 
provided to clients and not just for assessed hours. In this regard 
management indicated that a proposed move to a new system should 
resolve the potential issues identified.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 2,
L – 1 

P
age 14



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Stronger Families 
Claim

In April 2012, the Government launched the Troubled Families Programme 
(known locally as Stronger Families) to turn around the lives of troubled 
families over a 3 year period. This has since been extended for a further 5 
years from 2015/16 to reach a further 400,000 families across England 
with £200 million being committed to fund this first year. The current 
Programme has been extended to families with a broader range of 
problems, including those affected by domestic violence and abuse, with 
younger children who need help and with a range of physical and mental 
health problems.
For each claim that is made by the Authority, there is a requirement for this 
to be independently verified by Internal Audit to confirm that it meets the 
claim criteria. The Authority must be able to demonstrate sustained and 
significant progress against the relevant criteria detailed in the Greater 
Manchester Troubled Families Phase 2 Family Outcomes Plan. To support 
this aim, a co-ordinated audit approach has been developed across 
Greater Manchester to ensure a consistent approach to verification is 
adopted.
The second claim in this Phase of £53,600 (cumulative claims of £69,600) 
was submitted in January 2016 and was verified by Internal Audit in 
accordance with the above methodology.

Substantial None

P
age 15



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Townships The four Township Committees hold a responsibility for the local delivery 
of a number of Council services. Local priorities are highlighted within 
Township Plans and each Committee has devolved capital and revenue 
resources to support the delivery of their priorities. This audit evaluated the 
processes in place to produce the Township Plans, the monitoring of 
progress against these Plans and the governance arrangements over 
expenditure.

Internal Audit concluded that there is a sound system of control in 
operation to manage risks effectively and many areas of good practice 
were identified. The only issue identified was the need to ensure a more 
formal process is in place in respect of the production and approval of new 
Township Plans or changes to existing Plans which will be considered 
further by the Township Chairs.

Substantial M – 1

P
age 16



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Grants – 
Community 

Services

Local authorities make grant awards to community or voluntary groups as 
part of their service to their communities. The purpose of grants may be to 
encourage members of the public to deliver services of direct relevance to 
the Council’s objectives, or it may be for wider cultural or environmental 
purposes, which nevertheless address the wellbeing of the area and so 
contribute to the Council’s overall purpose. This audit evaluated the 
effectiveness of governance over RBC grant funding by Community 
Services or through Township Committee Funds to external organisations, 
focusing on eligibility, application and assessment, decision making, 
funding agreements, monitoring and reporting.

The audit confirmed that although there is a framework in place for the 
management and monitoring of grant funding, there is scope to improve 
the monitoring and verification of both the financial and performance 
aspects of the funding agreements, as well as improving the overall 
consistency to which various processes are applied. The adequate 
assurance given reflects the fact that in funding external organisations 
there is the risk of misuse of the funding which could affect public 
confidence in the stewardship of public monies, and there is also the risk 
of reputational damage though association with an organisation if any 
issues were to emerge. As such it is important that there is effective 
governance in place and that the Authority maintains control and 
accountability over funds. A number of actions were agreed to address 
some of these issues identified during the audit:

 The need for more well defined procedures supporting the 
governance and administration of grants, including more objective, 
defined and consistent eligibility criteria;

 The lack of clear and consistent application processes to provide a 
clear rationale for the grant award; and

 The need to verify and challenge information provided by funded 
organisations more robustly to support more effective monitoring.

Internal Audit will continue to monitor controls in this area to ensure risks 
are being appropriately mitigated.

Adequate M – 12,
L – 3  

P
age 17



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Grants – 
Economic Affairs

As per the audit of Community Services grants above, a similar audit was 
performed on grants administered by Economic Affairs.

The adequate assurance provided again reflected the need to strengthen 
and improve elements of its governance arrangements specifically relating 
to application processes and monitoring arrangements. Actions were 
agreed to address the following issues:

 The need to enhance application processes to provide clear 
support and a rationale for awarding grants;

 The need to verify and challenge information provided by funded 
organisations more robustly to support more effective monitoring;

 Ensure any additional funding is fully supported by a clear rationale 
and decision making process;

 The need to conduct annual appraisals of organisations to ensure 
expected outcomes have been achieved prior to the award of 
further funding;

 The need to ensure outcomes are appropriately reported and 
communicated to facilitate informed decision making over future 
grant funding awards; and

 The need to ensure closer liaison with other areas of the Council to 
enhance awareness of grant awards being applied for by one 
organisation to more than one Service area within the Council. 

Internal Audit will continue to monitor controls in this area to ensure risks 
are being appropriately mitigated.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 7,
L – 1 

P
age 18



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Payment 
Requests

A ‘payment request’ is a function available within the Authority’s e-
procurement systems as a means of raising a payment to a supplier or 
individual without having an invoice available. Such payments may include 
grants, pupil premiums, refunds etc. The audit focused on ensuring any 
such payments were processed accurately and in line with agreed 
procedures.

Whilst we were able to provide substantial assurance over the processing 
of such transactions, we did identify some payment requests made where 
an invoice was already available, which does increase the risk of a 
duplicate payment being made. As a consequence, Internal Audit issued a 
memo to all Directorates to ensure relevant officers are reminded of the 
procedures in place and the risks involved to avoid any future such 
occurrences.

Substantial L – 1 

Resources Business Rates This audit focused on providing assurance over the adequacy of controls 
and processes associated with the collection, recovery and enforcement, 
and write-off of business rates.

Internal Audit concluded that there is a sound system of control in 
operation to manage risks effectively and only one low priority 
recommended was made.

Substantial L – 1 

P
age 19



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Creditors VAT Most payments made by the Council pass through the Creditors payment 
system via individual creditor accounts. This audit focused on ensuring 
that VAT is correctly processes and accounted for, involving the roles of 
both Financial Processing and the Tax and Treasury Management Team.

The control systems were considered to be generally sound although there 
were opportunities to further improve controls, specifically to ensure that:

 VAT invoices are obtained promptly to support periodic payments 
to facilitate recovery of the relevant VAT;

 VAT only invoices are processed correctly to ensure appropriate 
reclaim of the VAT; and

 Any anomalies between the supplier name on the invoice and the 
creditor account are highlighted and resolved promptly to ensure 
that payments are processed only to the appropriate supplier.

Adequate M – 3,
L – 3  

P
age 20



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Purchase Cards Purchase cards are used for various purposes both to reduce the 
dependency on cash and also to generate a rebate on the use of the cards 
which brings additional income in to the Council. The audit focused on 
ensuring governance and control over such cards was appropriate and in 
line with best practice, and to ensure the card was used in line with policy.

The audit confirmed that controls were generally sound, but there were 
opportunities to improve the management of risks in a number of areas 
including ensuring:

 Expenditure was in line with policy and original business cases 
supporting their use, and transaction limits are not circumvented 
through splitting transaction values;

 Transaction are authorised and processed on a more timely basis;
 Cards are cancelled on a more timely basis in respect of officers 

who leave the employment of the Council;
 VAT is appropriately reclaimed on transactions to avoid financial 

loss to the Council;
 Guidance documents supporting he use of the cards continues to 

be challenged and updated to reflect current usage of the cards; 
and

 Responsibilities for the administration and monitoring of purchase 
card transactions should be clarified to enhance overall 
accountability.

Adequate M – 9,
L – 2  

P
age 21



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Payroll – 
Changes to 
Terms and 
Conditions

A significant number of changes to staff terms and conditions took place in 
April 2015 largely as a result of the Savings Programme. The audit 
focused on providing assurance that the changes made had been 
implemented effectively and accurately based on a sample of transactions.

Whilst the majority of transactions reviewed had the changes processed 
accurately, a few anomalies were noted in relation to essential user car 
payments, overtime payments and application of the living wage. We can 
confirm that all the anomalies were immediately resolved and no further 
actions remain outstanding.

Adequate M – 4,
L – 1  

Resources Housing Benefits 
Overpayments

Overpayments occur when the Council revises or supersedes an award of 
housing benefit, either because there is no entitlement or there is a 
reduced entitlement. Most cases arise due to changes in the 
circumstances of claimants. Overpayments must comply with regulations 
issued by the DWP. This audit focused on ensuring overpayments are 
identified in a timely manner, accord with regulations and are followed up 
and resolved appropriately.

Internal Audit gained substantial assurance that processes and controls 
were effective to manage the risks involved. Some actions were agreed to 
enhance existing good practice further in relation to quality checking and 
responding to potential changes in circumstances of claimants.

Substantial M – 2,
L - 2 

P
age 22



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Financial 
Assessments – 

Adult Care

Financial assessments are carried out to determine how much a service 
user will pay for the social care services they receive. The assessment 
takes into account the service users financial situation which determines if 
any contribution is needed towards the costs of the care package. 
Assessments may be residential (care home) or non-residential (own 
home). The objective of the audit was to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
control framework in place to administer and manage financial 
assessments.

Internal Audit concluded that controls were effective. The only medium 
priority action required was to introduce a data input check on non-
residential assessments to ensure accuracy of calculations is maintained.

Substantial M – 1,
L – 1  

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter four, two grant certifications were signed off in this way. These 
were the following:
 Local Highways Maintenance Funding – Incentive Element;; and
 Local Sustainable Transport Fund No. 3 Grant Determination 2012. 

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial NoneP
age 23



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

Pupil Premium The Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) is provided specifically to raise the 
attainment of disadvantaged pupils. With the exception of amounts 
provided for looked after children, schools have the flexibility of spending 
the grant as they consider appropriate. However schools are accountable 
for the use of this funding through publication of online information 
confirming its use and benefits derived. This audit focused on evaluating 
the administrative systems used by schools to record the funding, its use 
and pupil progress, and the governance arrangements for monitoring and 
reporting.

The review confirmed that the schools visited had varying approaches to 
how they administered and used the funding. Whilst in general terms 
schools complied with relevant guidance, there were opportunities to apply 
more consistent processes to the quality of record keeping, evidencing the 
impact of interventions, improving the publication of usage and outcomes 
and increasing the visibility of expenditure relating to looked after children. 

Arising from this, Internal Audit produced a checklist setting out best 
practice in all the key areas and this was circulated to all schools to enable 
a self-assessment to be undertaken to ensure that the arrangements in 
place at each school are both appropriate and in line with best practice.

Adequate None

P
age 24



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

3 Primary 
Schools

1 Secondary 
School

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Bowlee Park Primary
Crossgates Primary
Oulder Hill Community
Whitaker Moss Primary

No high priority recommendations were made. However a number of 
actions were agreed to improve processes and controls including the 
following:
 The need to ensure Employment Status Indicators are completed for all 

non-schools based staff to ensure tax and national insurance is 
appropriately accounted for.

 Enhancing the processes and controls over the use of debit cards;
 Ensuring an audit trail is maintained to support all sources of school 

income;
 Ensuring approval of purchase transactions is made in line with 

delegated authority levels;
 School budgets are appropriately approved;
 Improvements are made to processes associated with the handling 

and banking of cash; 
 Ensuring agreements are made to support any arrangements whereby 

staff provide services to other schools; and
 VAT is appropriately accounted for on all purchase transactions.  

Substantial – 
2

Adequate - 2

M – 20,
L – 23 

P
age 25



Appendix B

FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 6 JUNE 2016   

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up 

Audit

Corporate Debt A Corporate 5 30/04/2015 10/11/2015 3 2

Further development of 
debt reporting due to be 

complete by 31 May 2016. 
Update of the Council’s 

Secondment and Transfer 
Policy is dependent upon 

review by HR.  

Quality Assurance 
Framework L Children's 15 30/04/2015    Follow up in progress 

Post Adoption Support A Children's 10 30/06/2015 21/08/2015 8 2 Follow up in progress

Fostering Panel A Children's 25 31/07/2015 09/02/2016 11 14

Most of the remaining 
recommendations due to 
be completed by 31/03/16 

when new contracts 
established together with a 
further review of policies by 

31/08/16

Appointeeship and 
Deputyship A Adult 10 31/01/2016    

Policies and standards to 
be reviewed following new 
standards introduced by 

the Office of Guardianship 
– follow up in progress 

P
age 26



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up 

Audit

Recharges: Green Lane 
Workshop A Neighbourhoods 10 31/01/2016  1 9 Follow up in progress

Creditors VAT A Resources 3 29/02/2016    To be followed up 2016/17
Corporate CCTV 
Arrangements A Neighbourhoods 8 31/03/2016    Follow up in progress

Events Management A Neighbourhoods 8 31/03/2016 23/05/2016 1 7

Revised date for 
implementation now set as 
30 September 2016 due to 

restructure.
Grant Awards - Community 
Services A Neighbourhoods 12 31/03/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Corporate Back-Up and 
Recovery S Neighbourhoods 2 30/04/2016    Follow up in progress

Carer's Assessments A Adult 4 30/04/2016    To be followed up 2016/17
Housing Benefits - 
Overpayments S Resources 2 30/04/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Grant Awards - Economic 
Affairs A Economy 8 30/04/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Purchase Cards A Resources 9 30/06/2016    To be followed up 2016/17
Townships S Neighbourhoods 1 30/06/2016    To be followed up 2016/17
IT Disaster Recovery & 
Business Continuity A Neighbourhoods 2 31/07/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Asset Management-  
Disposals A Economy 5 31/08/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Corporate Health and 
Safety A Resources 9 30/09/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Controcc and other 
Payments A Adult 3 31/10/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

P
age 27



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up 

Audit

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 3 31/10/2016    To be followed up 2016/17

Financial Assessments S Resources 1 31/12/2016    To be followed up 2016/17
Contract Monitoring - 
Contact Centre A Neighbourhoods 3 31/03/2017    To be followed up 2016/17

P
age 28



Subject: Internal Audit - Annual Report 
2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: Tel: 01706925452

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report summarises the work of Internal Audit during 2015/16 and presents the 
Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s overall control 
environment, governance and risk management for 2015/16.

2 Recommendations

2.1      For information. 

3 Background

3.1      This report is presented to the Members of the Audit and Governance Committee for 
their information and should be considered as part of the Members decision to approve 
the Annual Governance Statement and Annual Statement of Accounts for 2015/16.

Alternatives considered

3.2      No alternatives considered.

4 Financial Implications

4.1       There are no financial implications arising from this report

5  Legal Implications

5.1       There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly throughout 
this period of significant change.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1    The only implications on risk are those issues which have been highlighted by Internal 
Audit during the year. In this regard, these risks will be mitigated by completion of the 
actions agreed with management and summarised within the respective quarterly 
reports to this Committee.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

         There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2    Equality/Community Impact Assessments

         There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10     The role and scope of Internal Audit

10.1 The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated to the 
Director of Resources (as the Chief Finance Officer) through Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to 
undertake an effective internal audit of the Authority’s accounting records and of its 
system of internal control. The overall aims of Internal Audit are to provide an 
independent and objective opinion to management on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
overall control environment, governance and risk management by:
 reviewing the adequacy of and identifying improvements in the Council’s systems;
 adding value by identifying improvements in the use of resources;
 helping embed a culture of appropriate risk management; and
 supporting corporate aims and objectives. 

10.2 The risk based approach by Internal Audit is now well developed, taking account of the 
wider business risk, performance management and developments in risk management 
and corporate governance. Rochdale Council’s Internal Audit function works in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 (PSIAS).

11 Review of work carried out in 2015/16

11.1  Internal Audit prepares an Annual Audit Plan of work to be carried out. This is based on 
the outcomes of extensive consultation, the Internal Audit Strategic Plan which details 
all potential areas at a corporate level and across all service areas within RBC and all 
related risk registers. The draft plan is discussed with Directors and their Service 
Management Teams (SMT). It is agreed by the Director of Resources and approved by 
the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Page 30



11.2 The key components of the actual audit work undertaken in 2015/16 compared to the 
original audit plan and the actual audit work undertaken in 2014/15 are summarised 
below.

Type of Audit Work undertaken Actual
2014/15

Plan 
2015/16

Actual
2015/16

Days % Days % Days %
Governance and Strategic Framework 175 12 225 15 240 16
Material Systems 185 13 110 8 207 14
Major Contracts, Partnerships and    

Procurement 145 10
 

155         11 198 13
Computer Audit 84 6 85 6 93 6
Schools 131 9 95 6 107 7
Other Systems 489 33 515 35 535 35
Audit Planning and Consultation 19 1 20 1 20 1
External Organisations Work 0 0 15 1 6 0
Unplanned Work 
 - Fraud & Irregularity 60 4 140 9 13 1
 - Non – Fraud 177 12 120 8 99 7

TOTAL 1,465 100 1,480 100 1,518 100

11.3 In order to respond to changes within Services, a number of adjustments were made to 
the audit plan during the year at the request of and in consultation with Services. In this 
regard certain audits were deferred until 2016/17 in order to accommodate other audits 
focusing on emerging risks which assumed greater priority in terms of providing 
assurance on the overall control environment. In other areas, audits were deferred due 
to the fact that planned developments within Services had not yet taken place. The 
flexibility built into the audit planning process reflects the need to respond to the 
changing structures and risks inherent in a period of ongoing change for the Council. No 
audits that were deferred had any significant impact on providing this assurance. 

11.4 The key points to note when comparing actual days to plan in 2015/16 and actual days 
in 2014/15 are:

 
The amount of time spent on areas relating to governance and the strategic framework 

continued to represent a core part of Internal Audit activity, reflecting the fact that more 
focus is directed towards high risk areas which have an impact right across the 
Authority; 

The decrease in unplanned fraud work compared with plan allowed a commensurate 
increase in work on material systems to enhance the level of assurance over areas 
such as debtors, creditors and cash;

 The amount of time spent reviewing material systems continues to reflect the 
significant focus now being directed towards more in depth audits of the key financial 
systems, with scope and coverage varying on a cyclical basis depending upon the 
issues found during the course of each year;  

 The increase in time spent on major projects and procurement against plan reflects the 
increased risks associated with this area in the current challenging economic climate 
and the period of significant change. Particular focus continues to be directed towards 

Page 31



commissioning arrangements as new business models emerge within various Council 
Services, town centre developments, and PFI contracts which underpin major 
initiatives such as that relating to schools and street lighting; 

 Time spent on computer audit areas was directed towards ensuring compliance with 
the Public Services Network, which is crucial to ongoing connectivity with key 
government systems, and seeking audit assurance on ICT system developments 
which support transformational change within Services, as well as areas such as 
information governance, ICT resilience and policy compliance;  and

 The time spent on school audits remains at a relatively high level in order to provide 
senior management with ongoing assurance on the controls in place across this 
sector, which has responsibility for significant amounts of funding.

  
12 Summary overview of audit coverage in 2015/16

12.1 The diagram below illustrates the audit coverage within each Service during 2015/16.  
Details of final reports issued have been reported on a quarterly basis during the year to 
the Audit and Governance Committee as part of the governance framework.  

Page 32



13 Audit opinions in audit reports

13.1 In each Internal Audit report, Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on 
how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are 
as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control systems in operation are 
in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, opportunities exist to 
improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks effectively.

13.2 Set out in the table below is a summary of Audit Opinions issued in relation to reviews 
within Services during the year 2015/16.

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

Ad
eq

ua
te

Li
m

ite
d

To
ta

l (
20

15
/1

6)

To
ta

l (
20

14
/1

5)

Adult Care 3 3 0 6 5
Children’s Services – Social Care 3 0 0 3 9
Children’s Services – Early Help 7 9 0 16 18
Economy 2 3 0 5 2
Neighbourhoods 8 7 2 17 9
Public Health and Wellbeing 2 0 0 2 1
Resources 5 11 0 16 17
Total (2015/16) 30 33 2 65 61
Total (2014/15) 22 37 2 61

13.3 The figures in the table above do not represent the full value of work undertaken within 
the Authority’s Services. Unplanned work (including fraud and irregularity) and advice 
and support do not generally result in an audit opinion and are not therefore represented 
in the above figures.  

13.4 The use of formal audit opinions on internal controls in audit reports continues to be well 
received by Services and Members as a concise way of summarising the audit outcome. 
Overall, 46% of the assurance opinions issued were “Substantial” (36% in 2014/15) and 
51% were “Adequate” (61% in 2014/15). 

13.5 A summary of the issues and actions arising from audits receiving a “Limited” assurance 
audit opinion is included in section 15 below. All such reports have been discussed with 
members of the Audit and Governance Committee during the course of the year and 
any subsequent follow up work on audit reports is also reflected in the summary of 
follow up audits included within each quarterly Internal Audit report. 

Page 33



14   Internal Audit staffing

14.1 The structure of the Internal Audit team throughout 2015/16 was as set out below:

Head of Internal 
Audit

Audit Manager Audit Manager

Senior 
Auditor

Auditor 

Senior 
Auditor 

AuditorAuditor
(Term time only)

14.2 With effect from 1 April 2016, and as previously reported, the structure of the Internal 
Audit team reflects the loss of one Auditor position as a result of the Savings 
Programme approved by Council on 24 February 2016 and it is on the basis of this 
revised resource that the Audit Plan for 2016/17 has been set. 

14.3 With effect from September 2015, following the recruitment of a new Risk Manager, this 
position reports directly into the Head of Internal Audit. Also, with effect from January 
2016, the Counter Fraud Team report directly into the Head of Internal Audit.   

15 Audit reviews with a limited assurance audit opinion 

15.1 Any reports which include significant issues or control weaknesses during the course of 
the year are brought to the attention of members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee for discussion. This will ensure that appropriate actions are taken to resolve 
these issues in a timely manner. Two audit reports with limited assurance opinions were 
issued during 2015/16. Internal Audit has also completed follow up audits to confirm the 
implementation of actions arising from significant weaknesses highlighted in previous 
periods. The key issues arising which have been taken account of in terms of deriving 
an overall opinion on the effectiveness of the control environment are set out below.

15.2   Time Management
(Neighbourhoods – Mark Widdup) 

Environmental Management (EM) operates a range of essential services including 
waste collection, street cleaning, grounds maintenance and school escorts for disabled 
children. About 250 staff are employed in these functions. Whilst all contracted (non-
agency) staff are now paid monthly, there continues to be a need for a time recording 
system due to the wide variety of operations in place. The review of time recording 
practices was requested by management, including supervisor oversight and 
document processing and retention. It was evident that a number of different practices 
had emerged across EM for a number of reasons, due to a failed attempt to introduce 
electronic time recording, the transfer to monthly payroll and also a number of 
restructures that have taken place across various services.

The ‘Limited Assurance’ opinion, reported to Audit and Governance Committee in 
September 2015, was given because the review indicated that processes and systems 

Page 34



were in need of significant improvement. 10 high priority and 4 medium priority actions 
were agreed. However this opinion in no way reflected upon the quality of work done 
by EM staff, merely the inadequate processes to document and account for the time 
they do work. 

    
           Since the audit was completed, Internal Audit has continued to liaise with management 

to ensure timely completion of all the agreed actions. Management has now confirmed 
that 8 high priority and the 4 medium priority recommendations have been actioned. 
The remaining 2 high priority actions are also in progress and subject to identifying and 
implementing a time recording system suitable for multiple locations and remote 
logging. This would further enhance overall efficiency. 

15.3 Follow up on IT Desktop Asset Management
             (Neighbourhoods – Mark Widdup)

The focus of this audit was to evaluate the stock control arrangements in place to 
support the desktop equipment used within the Authority. It was recognised that the 
supporting ‘My Site’ database was still evolving since its introduction and so it was 
envisaged that this audit would contribute to its further development. The scope of the 
review included the processing of stock purchase transactions, the movement and 
secure storage of stock, the maintenance of adequate audit trails and the control of 
equipment in the context of movements of Council staff. At the time of the audit, 
Internal Audit was only able to provide limited assurance that risks were being 
managed effectively as the audit work indicated that significant improvements were still 
required to the systems of control around this equipment. This outcome was reported 
to Audit and Governance Committee in June 2015.

  A follow up audit has since been completed which confirmed that all the agreed 
recommendations have now been completed. 

15.4   Cash Income – Environmental Management Follow Up Audit
  (Neighbourhoods – Mark Widdup)

The Environmental Management Service has responsibility for a wide variety of 
services within the Borough. Income is collected from many of these services and this 
audit focused on the effectiveness of cash control arrangements in a number of these 
service areas. The audit undertaken in quarter 3 of 2015/16 focused on establishing 
whether cash due is identified, collected fully, receipted and banked securely and in a 
timely manner.
 
As reported to Audit and Governance Committee on 21 March 2016, Internal Audit 
concluded that only limited assurance could be given on the adequacy of overall 
controls over cash income. Whilst no financial losses were specifically identified, the 
lack of effective cash control arrangements across many areas of the Service 
increased the risk of financial loss and fraud. This included income collected not being 
matched against expectations, income banked not being matched against general 
ledger postings and any identified anomalies not being adequately followed up.

A follow up audit was completed in quarter 4 of 2015/16 to establish whether the 
agreed recommendations had been implemented by the agreed date, specifically 
focusing on the 6 high and 7 medium priority recommendations. Internal Audit 
concluded from the testing undertaken and discussions held with management that all 
these recommendations had been completed and that a revised audit opinion of 
substantial assurance was now appropriate.

Page 35



     16 Unplanned work

16.1 Unplanned work includes investigations into suspected and actual irregularities, special 
assignments, audits not included within the agreed Audit Plan, and general advice and 
support. Unplanned work accounted for 7% (2014/15 - 16%) of all productive time with 
suspected fraud and irregularity investigations comprising approximately 12% (2014/15 - 
25%) of this. A summary of the significant unplanned work completed (i.e. resulted in a 
report to management and where any related disciplinary or Police related issues have 
been formally concluded) during 2015/16 is set out in the following paragraphs. 

16.2   Significant unplanned work (suspected fraud and irregularity)

In addition to issues previously reported by Internal Audit to the Audit and Governance 
Committee during the year, it is also noted that a number of preliminary investigations 
were undertaken during the year as a result of allegations made either by individuals or 
on an anonymous basis in conjunction with the Whistleblowing Policy. These 
investigations resulted in a variety of outcomes including:

 No evidence could be found to support the allegations and, where the 
allegations were made by a known individual, direct communication was made 
with that individual; and

 No evidence to support the allegations but enhancements to existing processes 
and controls were made to mitigate certain areas of risk in the future as 
identified during the investigation.

     16.3 Significant unplanned work (non-fraud)

Other significant audit work not included in the original Audit Plan included the following 
reviews:

Audit Service Reported to 
Committee

Elections Resources 8 September 2015
Corporate back-up and recovery Neighbourhoods 21 March 2016
Recharges – Green Lane Workshop Neighbourhoods 21 March 2016
Rochdale Development Agency Economy 27 June 2016
Multi Faith Partnership Neighbourhoods 27 June 2016

  
17 Governance and risk management

17.1 Governance 

Internal Audit assurance has been provided in various areas of governance throughout 
2015/16 including the following:
 Independent evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement to ensure it aligns with 

Internal Audit’s view on the control environment and the management of risks across 
the Authority;

 Evaluation of responses from the annual Directors Governance Assurance Statement;
 Membership and input to the Governance Board which provides an overall co-

ordinating role to ensure issues and developments associated with governance are 
progressed and challenged in a timely manner;

 Leading the review, development and update of a new set of Financial Regulations 
which now form part of the Council Constitution;

 Providing input into the development and update of the existing Contract Procedure 
Rules; 

Page 36



 Full review of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy to ensure it remains up to date 
and in line with relevant guidance and legislation; and

 Annual audit assurance provided to confirm compliance with the data protection 
legislation and guidance, together with the requirements of the Public Services 
Network.

17.2 Risk management

Internal Audit has continued to provide direct input into the development of the Council’s 
risk management processes and arrangements which have included the following:
 Liaison with the Wider Leadership Team to refresh the Corporate Risk Register to 

ensure it remains up to date and aligned with the current structure and objectives of 
the Council, and continues to be reviewed and challenged on an ongoing basis; 

 Development of risk reporting protocols to ensure relevant information is fed into the 
quarterly Leadership Dashboard;

 Ongoing liaison between the Head of Internal Audit and the Risk Manager to ensure 
that any key areas of risk emerging from Internal Audit work are communicated and 
considered for inclusion within relevant risk registers and any emerging Service based 
risks are considered as part of audit planning processes; and

 Ensuring Service risk registers continue to be challenged, reviewed and updated on an 
ongoing basis with appropriate support from Risk Management Groups and a network 
of Risk Champions covering all key Service areas. 

17.3 Processes supporting governance and risk management are continuing to develop as 
Council Services and structures evolve. Internal Audit will continue to liaise closely with 
management both to support and critically appraise these processes on an ongoing 
basis.

18 Contract audit, procurement and commissioning

18.1 The role of contract audit continues to develop as local authorities change methods of 
service delivery. In this regard, key audit activity completed in 2015/16 included: 
 Reviewing procurement processes and controls to evaluate the extent of compliance 

with relevant rules, regulations and best practice, and the effectiveness of controls to 
mitigate the risk of fraud, including through the use of purchase cards; 

 Compliance reviews relating to various Service based contractual arrangements;
 Thematic review of procurement in schools;
Reviewing commissioning arrangements within Public Health;
Ensuring effective governance and controls over procurement have been established 

within the programme of spend associated with the Highways Investment Programme;
A review of processes and controls associated within the management of the ongoing 

Schools PFI contract; and
Evaluating controls over purchase arrangements supported by composite invoices to 

ensure risk of financial exposure or loss is mitigated.

18.2 Further audit reviews were in progress and due to be completed early in 2016/17 in 
respect of the following:
 Reviewing commissioning, placement contracts and contract management within 

Children’s Services; and
 Evaluating the governance and contract management arrangements for one of the 

Council’s key strategic partners, Agilisys, to ensure performance management 
arrangements are effective and appropriate levels of accountability exist.

The outcomes of these audits will be reported to Audit and Governance Committee once 
completed.

Page 37



18.3 Various audits were completed to meet the terms of certain external grant funding 
contracts and therefore provide assurance that expenditure was in line with the terms of 
the grant funding arrangements. These included:
 Autism (Community Capital) Grant;
 Disabled Facilities Capital Grant 2014/15;
Annual Certification of Assessed and Supported in Year in Employment (AYSE) 

Programme Expenditure for 2014/15; 
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Highway Maintenance) Specific Grant 

Determination 2010;
 Stronger Families Programme;
 Local Sustainable Transport Fund No. 3 Grant Determination 2012; and
 Local Highways Maintenance Funding – Incentive Element.

18.4  Internal Audit also provided input into the development by STAR of updated Contract 
Procedure Rules which now apply to Rochdale, Trafford and Stockport Councils and 
form part of the respective Constitutions.

19 Counter fraud

19.1 During the year Internal Audit has continued to develop and support a fraud awareness 
programme as part of an ongoing commitment to promote a more pro-active and 
cohesive approach to the prevention and detection of fraud across the Authority. More 
detail is included within the Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2015/16 presented to the 
Audit and Governance Committee on 27 June 2016. However specific areas covered in 
2015/16 include:
 Ongoing review and update of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy (AFACS) in 

general terms to ensure it remains relevant in the context of changes in legislation 
and changes within the Authority;

 Further update and promotion of the Whistleblowing Policy which forms part of the 
AFACS;

 Co-ordination of the National Fraud Initiative to ensure that all relevant stages were 
completed within deadlines by 31 March 2016;

 Co-ordination of a response to the CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre’s Fighting Fraud & 
Corruption Locally Checklist, to measure the Council’s culture and adherence to best 
practice, for presentation to the Audit and Governance Committee on 27 June 2015;

 Co-ordination of a response to the 2016 CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker survey; 
 Liaison with Finance Service to develop areas of work using specialised software (AP 

Forensics) to minimise the risk of fraud within the creditor payment area; and
 Maintaining the close links established with the Counter Fraud Team to ensure a co-

ordinated approach to fraud is adopted.

19.2 Counter fraud work covers many areas including culture, deterrence, prevention, 
detection, investigation, sanction and redress. Working on the premise that “prevention 
is better than cure”, Internal Audit adopt the approach that it is important to be as 
proactive as possible in terms of attempting to stop fraud before it occurs or to detect 
fraud as soon as possible. Being proactive and minimising fraud will assist in more 
optimal use of available resources either through reducing financial losses or more 
effective use of time. This approach is enhanced further through the recent re-alignment 
of the Counter Fraud Team which now reports directly into the Head of Internal Audit.

 
19.3 CIPFA issued some best practice guidance on anti-fraud measures entitled Managing 

the Risk of Fraud, known as the Red Book. Within criteria 4.20 of the Red Book, a 
challenge is made as to whether proactive exercises are undertaken in key areas of 
fraud risk or known systems weaknesses. Within the response of RBC to the Red Book 

Page 38



which was previously presented to the Audit Committee, RBC confirmed compliance to 
this criteria in the following ways:
 Known system weaknesses are reviewed depending on the view of the associated 

risk and materiality; this is factored into the Internal Audit planning process;
 Other proactive work includes an external company being employed to identify 

potential duplicate payments;
 The Counter Fraud Team engage in various proactive anti-fraud exercises; and
 RBC actively participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), now managed and co-

ordinated by Internal Audit, with appropriate follow up procedures in place.

19.4 The action point from the above response was for further efforts to be made to 
proactively identify workplace fraud, possibly through the use of data interrogations via 
relevant IT software. In order to facilitate this, Internal Audit has made use of general IT 
facilities within Microsoft Office and also a specialised audit software package called 
Audit Command Language (ACL). Alongside this, Internal Audit continues to evaluate 
the risks associated with the significant operational and financial systems to determine 
which areas may be more vulnerable to fraud. This evaluation takes into account local 
knowledge and experience and also external guidance through such publications as 
Protecting the Public Purse. Input was also provided by the Counter Fraud Team.

 
19.5 Following on from the above, further extended use of ACL software will be made by 

Internal Audit in 2016/17 both in terms of planned audit work and also in terms of 
proactive fraud identification work.

19.6 In 2015/16 members of Internal Audit continued to attend and provide input to the AGMA 
Fraud Group, which is a sub group of the North West Chief Audit Executive Group. The 
group continues to be a valuable awareness and solution-sharing forum for Auditors in 
the field of fraud across the North West region.

20 Audit performance indicators 
20.1 The following targets were set as part of the continuous improvement process. The table 

below compares actuals for 2015/16 against the targets for 2015/16 and the actuals for 
2014/15.

Performance Indicator 2014/15 2015/16
Actual Target Actual

Improved? Target 
achieved?

Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day (£) 224 249 232 NO YES

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 198 183 194 NO YES

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 95 96 YES YES

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit

100 98 100 YES YES

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations accepted 100 98 100 YES YES

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the 
top two categories (i.e. very good & good)

100 97 98 NO YES

20.2 All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year.  

Page 39



20.3 In spite of increases in salary related costs, the overall cost per audit day came in ahead 
of target due largely to increased productivity within the team, with an ongoing 
commitment to reduce administrative time. This in turn led to chargeable days coming in 
ahead of target, in spite of the negative impact of unpaid days arising from the savings 
programme and an increase in bank holidays within the financial year due to timing.

20.4  In all areas, audit management and staff are mindful of methods to maintain and, where 
necessary, improve upon performance on an ongoing basis.

21 Client surveys

21.1  Client survey questionnaires are issued at the conclusion of each audit as part of 
Internal Audit’s quality control procedures. An analysis of returns showed that overall 
98% of the marks were in the good or very good category compared to 100% in 
2014/15. This high level reflects the continuing efforts made by Internal Audit to consult 
with client managers on audit coverage, to feedback findings during the audit and to 
seek to continually add value and improve the quality and presentation of audit reports.  

22 Liaison with external audit

22.1 The arrangements between external audit (Grant Thornton) and Internal Audit are 
supported by regular communication to ensure proper co-ordination and liaison in 
respect of audit activities. Regular meetings are held between Internal Audit and Grant 
Thornton to review progress in areas covered by the respective audit plans and to 
exchange information on any key local issues with audit implications.  This helps to 
mitigate the risk of any duplication in work and ensures more effective assurance is 
provided to those charged with responsibility for governance. In overall terms, the 
relationship between Internal Audit and external audit is now established and works very 
well. 

 
23 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)

23.1 The PSIAS were introduced with effect from 1 April 2013. There is a specific 
requirement to confirm conformance to these standards to the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and also to report any such non-conformance to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. Furthermore, where such non-conformance impacts on the overall scope or 
operation of the internal audit activity, this should be disclosed within the Annual 
Governance Statement.

23.2 Internal Audit has completed a self-assessment against the PSIAS. This confirmed a 
conformance rate of 95%, with a further 2% of partial conformance, 1% of non-
conformance and 2% being deemed not applicable at this point in time. 

23.3 The key areas of non-conformance are:
 The PSIAS require the Chief Executive (or equivalent) to undertake, countersign, 

contribute feedback to or review the performance appraisal of the Head of Internal 
Audit. In Rochdale, this will be undertaken by the Assistant Director (Finance) with 
input from the Director of Resources and the Chair of the Audit and Governance 
Committee; and

 The PSIAS require an external assessment to be carried out at least every five 
years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. This external assessment can be in the form of a full external 
assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation. In order to 
respond to this requirement, a Peer Review process has been developed by the 
North West Chief Audit Executive (NWCAE) Group, in common with some other 
local authority areas in the UK. This is in the form of a self-assessment with external 

Page 40



validation. A successful trial has already been undertaken at one local authority and 
the proposed approach will be taken to the RBC Audit and Governance Committee 
for consideration and approval once signed off by the NWCAE Group. Thereafter, 
the timing of the Peer Review for RBC Internal Audit will be agreed by the NWCAE 
Group. 

23.4 The key areas of partial compliance related to:
 Certain standards associated with the Quality Assurance Improvement 

Programme (QAIP) which will be conformed with once the external assessment 
process referred to in paragraph 23.3 has been established; and

 The need to develop a more formal assurance framework identifying all the 
sources of assurance that feed into an overall assessment of the effectiveness of 
risk management and the control environment. In response to this, the Head of 
Internal Audit has developed an Assurance Map and Framework (see Section 24 
below) which will be considered by Members as part of this Annual Report as 
these contribute to the overall assurance supporting the Internal Audit opinion on 
the overall control environment. 

23.5 The key actions arising out of the internal QAIP were as follows:
 Continue to review and challenge the QAIP in the light of experience and best 

practice identified through liaison with other Internal Audit teams in the North 
West; and

 Continue to identify training opportunities which align specifically with new and 
emerging challenges posed by changes within Council services and new ways of 
working, and which also support development needs of individual Internal Audit 
staff.

23.6 It is therefore concluded that RBC Internal Audit conforms with the PSIAS in all material 
respects, with those exceptions being summarised and considered above. These 
exceptions do not impact on the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity 
and do not therefore require disclosure in the AGS.

24   Other external and internal sources of assurance

24.1  Aside from the assurances provided by both Internal Audit and external audit over the 
adequacy of the controls in place to manage key risks, there are numerous internal 
mechanisms through which management are able to provide their own assurances that 
the risks that they have ownership of are being managed effectively. In addition there 
are also assurances provided by various external bodies which are independent of the 
organisation. In order to recognise the contribution that these other sources of 
assurance have on the overall opinion of the control environment, Internal Audit has 
produced an Assurance Map (attached as Appendix 1) using the “three lines of defence 
model” as a basis for evaluating assurances over the management of the risks set out 
within the Corporate Risk Register. This model represents the 3 main levels of control/ 
assurance that should exist in any organisation such as Rochdale Council, namely:

 First line -  the risk and control environment that management has established to 
control day-to-day activities;

 Second line – oversight functions that co-ordinate, facilitate and provide 
assurance over the risk and control environment, including policies, procedures 
and guidance; and

   Third line – assurance provided by bodies who are independent of the front line 
Services and operations, both internally (Internal Audit) and externally (such as 
Ofsted, CQC etc). Such assurances are generally derived from and documented 
in reports.

Page 41



24.2  As this Map is designed to be a colour coded representation of the quality/ level of 
assurance derived from the various controls against each risk, a rating of red, amber or 
green has been applied by management based upon the guidance set out on the Map.

24.3  To complement the above, an Assurance Framework document (attached as Appendix 
2) has been developed to show in more pictorial form how the core areas which 
contribute to overall assurance link through to the work of the Governance Board and 
ultimately the production and approval of the Annual Governance Statement.

25      Internal Audit achievements for 2015/16

25.1   During the year Internal Audit:

 Completed 96% of the Internal Audit Plan to support the annual Internal Audit 
opinion;

 lead the review, development and update of a new set of Financial Regulations 
which now form part of the Council Constitution;

 developed an Assurance Map and Framework to support Members approval of the 
Annual Governance Statement; 

 continued to respond to requests from clients for unplanned work;
 demonstrated a strong performance in all of the team’s performance measures;
 continued to support a fraud awareness programme as part of an ongoing 

commitment to promote a more pro-active and cohesive approach to the prevention 
and detection of fraud across the Authority;

 completed a full review of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy to ensure the 
polices within it align with current best practice and also with changes occurring 
throughout the Authority;

 ensured all deadlines associated with the National Fraud Initiative process were 
achieved;

 supported and provided challenge to ongoing process developments, particularly 
those associated with legislative changes and new service models within both Adult 
and Children’s Services;

 provided training, guidance and support to Members; and
 demonstrated a high level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards.

26 Opinion on Internal Control 2015/16

26.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 has been completed in accordance with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. This Audit Plan comprised a range of assignments 
including reviews of all material financial systems, as part of our managed audit 
arrangements with external audit, and a range of risk and compliance based audits to 
provide assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control. 

 
26.2 The planned audit coverage for the year was based on an assessment of risks. Planned 

work has also been supplemented by ad hoc reviews in respect of suspected 
irregularities and other work commissioned by officers and Members of the Council, 
together with assurances derived from work conducted by independent review bodies 
and internal assurance mechanisms. Given the ongoing significant changes and risks 
being experienced by the Council throughout 2015/16, the Head of Internal Audit has 
continuously reviewed the risks associated with the Council’s operations and has 
allocated the necessary resources, via the Audit Plan, to form an opinion on the 
Council’s governance arrangements.

Page 42



26.3 Of the planned audit work completed during 2015/16, audit assurance opinions issued 
on the adequacy of the internal controls were recorded as 'adequate' or ‘substantial’ in 
96.7% of cases (97.9% in 2014/15). Only two audits were awarded ‘limited’ assurance 
opinions. The details of this audit work and any follow-up activity has been reported to 
Members in the Internal Audit quarterly reports. The ‘limited’ assurance opinions are not 
considered to be significant in the wider context of the overall system of internal control 
and did not relate to the programme of material system audit reviews. 

26.4 Whilst no systems of control can provide absolute assurance and given the limitations of 
audit work carried out, on the basis of the work undertaken in 2015/16 covering financial 
and operating systems, risk management and governance, the Head of Internal Audit 
concluded that a reasonable level of assurance can be given that the Council's overall 
control framework remains adequate, and generally being complied with.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 43



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL - ASSURANCE MAP 1st line of defence 2nd line of defence 3rd line of defence
Delivering the risk and control environment Other oversight and assurance functions Independent assurance/ advice

First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

CRR0002 A catastrophic event and lack of organisational
resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to
then support and protect the wider community and to
rebuild the infrastructure (Operational) 

20 12 Julian
Massel

Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and
checked for accuracy quarterly   

Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and
checked for accuracy quarterly Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   

Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers
site) for specific purposes  

Periodic training and briefing to service business
continuity leads undertaken   

Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and
Forward Incident officers

Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run
exercises   

Resilience of ICT systems is periodically tested Emergency plan, refreshed quarterly, communicated
and understood

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief
incidents and conduct exercises   

CRR0008 Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the
act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/
Legal)         

20 15 Gail
Hopper

Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and
embedded Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which

provides robust challenge   
Independent Ofsted inspections   

Workforce Development Strategy - training and support
provided to staff

Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully
embedded   

Regional Support and Challenge including Peer
Reviews

Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training
on safe practice in schools

Getting to Good Board is effective (Multi-Agency
Board)   

Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes and
controls

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

CRR0009 Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult
due to the act or omission by Council employees
(Compliance/ Legal)  

20 15 Sheila
Downey Effective management and supervision of staff   Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides

robust challenge   
Independent reviews by the Care Quality

Commission (CQC)   

Robust quality assurance/ contract management
procedures Quality assurance checks   Regional support and peer challenge    

Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social
workers 

Adult Care Safeguarding Policy is communicated
and followed   

Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes and
controls

Training and development plans for staff Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC
and other partners  

CRR0001 Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate
governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice,
poor decision making or judicial review, causing
serious service and financial failure (Compliance/
Legal) 

16 6 David
Wilcock

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

Code of Corporate Governance communicated,
understood and followed

Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and
Governance Committee 

Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and
being followed

Governance Board providing challenge to and co-
ordination of all governance issues   Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   

Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and
being followed

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated,
understood and followed Independent assurance provided by external Audit   

Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are
clear, understood and followed

Performance Management arrangements which
promotes accountability and outcome monitoring is

embedded

Independent assurance provided by external
assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality Commission etc.)   

Information Governance Framework which supports
compliance with all data control requirements is

embedded

Independent assurance on information governance
and data protection from an Information

Commissioner's Office Consensual Audit

Independent assurance on Internal Audit from a
Peer Review every 5 years

P
age 44



First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

CRR0003 Budget reductions required do not leave enough
budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve
balanced budget in 2016/17 and 2017/18 leading to a
failure in legal duty (Strategic) 

16 9 Pauline
Kane

Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively
highlights financial challenges   

Medium Term Financial Strategy updated annually
and approved by Cabinet and Council   

Regular reports to Leadership, Cabinet, Overview
and Scrutiny and Council on budget position locally

and nationally

Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Corporate Plan established which provides strategic
direction for services   

s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually
prior to budget setting   

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

Organisational Development Strategy in place which
aligns strategy, people and processes External audit financial resilience assessment   

Corporate approach to addressing budget
challenges (offices and Members working together)   

CRR0004 Ineffective financial management and resilience leads
to the Council significantly overspending the annual
budget (Strategic)

16 6 Pauline
Kane

Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively
highlights financial challenges   

Medium Term Financial Strategy updated annually
and approved by Cabinet and Council   

Regular reports to Leadership, Cabinet, Overview
and Scrutiny and Council on budget position locally

and nationally

Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Corporate Plan established which provides strategic
direction for services   

s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually
prior to budget setting   

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all
decision making   

Organisational Development Strategy in place which
aligns strategy, people and processes External audit financial resilience assessment   

Corporate approach to addressing budget
challenges (offices and Members working together)   

Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes and
controls

CRR0007 Risk of a breakdown in community stability
(Operational) 

16 12 Julian
Massel Extensive community links maintained   Community and Cohesion Strategy communicated

and embedded   Police neighbourhood surveys reported to the RSCP

Interfaith Networks Group in place   Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected
Members and Community Representatives

Hate crime reports to RSCP fo schools and
communities

Multi agency forums/ networks sharing intelligence   Joint working with Oldham to monitor and mitigate
tensions    

Community Hub and Consequence Management process
in place

PREVENT, Community Cohesion, Hate Crime action
plans

Tension monitoring and trigger plans in place CHANNEL panel policy
Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all

decision making   RSCP priority sub-groups

CRR0010 Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a
lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of
regeneration and prosperity (Operational)

16 9 John
Searle

Programme/ project management principles are applied
consistently   

Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and
regularly updated   

Oversight and challenge of major projects and
decisions by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny

Committee   
Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all

decision making   
Asset Management Plan is established, monitored

and regularly updated   
Maximise opportunities for good news   

Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad
news

CRR0005 Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety
systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate
manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/
Legal) 

12 8 Sheila
Downey

Learning and development provided to whole workforce,
primarily through e-learning   

Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear,
understood and being followed   Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   

In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into
the Central Health and Safety Committee   

Comprehensive health and well-being policies in
place and adhered to   

Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk
and issues highlighted and addressed   

Member training regularly updated, fully attended and
understood   

CRR0006 Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities
are not fully aligned - (Operational)

12 8 Steve
Rumbelow

Officer representation on working groups dealing with
CA/AGMA/Devolution issues as appropriate   

Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT
(Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   

Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny
Panel   

Leader is a member of formally constituted GM
Combined Authority with other Council Leaders and

Interim Mayor   
Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   

P
age 45



First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

Level of Assurance 1st and 2nd lines of defence
(process based assessment)

3rd line of defence
(results based assessment)

SUBSTANTIAL - Controls in place assessed as
adequate/ effective and in proportion to the risks

SUBSTANTIAL - Mainly positive results, many
strengths, minor recommendations for improvement

ADEQUATE - some areas of concern over the
adequacy/ effectiveness of the controls in proportion
to the risks

ADEQUATE - Mixed results, some areas of concern
and areas for improvement, some positive results
and some strengths

LIMITED - Significant concerns over the adequacy/
effectiveness of the controls in proportion to the risks

LIMITED - Overall negative results and areas of
concern, requiring action and improvement

Not applicable or not in place yet Not applicable or not in place yet

P
age 46



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL - OVERALL ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                             Review Function of                                                                                                                                             Governance  Board              

Performance 
Management
 Service Planning
 Performance 

Management 
Framework

 Performance 
Development Plans

 Performance reporting 
framework

 Scrutiny Committees 
and scrutiny reviews

 Organisational 
Development Strategy

 Project Management
 Workforce 

Development Strategy

Internal Audit

 Head of Internal 
Audit opinion 
expressed in annual 
report to Audit and 
Governance 
Committee.

 Operates in 
accordance with 
Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards

 Risk-based audit 
plan approved by 
Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

External Audit and 
Inspection
 Annual Plan 
 Annual Audit Letter
 Audit Opinion
 Ad hoc projects
 Service specific 

inspections

Assurance by 
Managers
 Annual Director 

Assurance 
Statements

 Periodic reports
 Assurance cascaded 

through all employees
 Control and risk 

assessments
 Quality Assurance 

frameworks
 In-house Service 

reviews

Risk Management 
and BCP
 Risk Management 

Strategy, Framework 
and Policy

 Risk embedded in 
policies and plans

 Risk embedded in 
Project Management

 Effectiveness 
evaluated

 Approval and 
monitoring of 
Corporate and 
Service risk registers

Other Sources of 
Assurance
 Fraud Reports and 

investigations
 Reports by inspectors
 Post implementation 

reviews
 Ombudsman reports
 Ofsted
 Care Quality 

Commission
 HM Customs
 Food Standards 

Agency
 Department of Health
 Peer reviews

Significant 
Partners/ 
Associated Bodies
 Client Monitoring role
 Performance 

management 
standards and 
monitoring

 Review of Council’s 
governance 
arrangements

 Internal and external 
audit reviews

Internal Control Framework
 Constitution and Standing Orders
 Code of Corporate Governance
 Statutory Officers
 Corporate Plan detailing high level objectives and priorities
 Service Planning Framework
 Information Governance Framework
 Data Quality Strategy
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Annual Budget & Budgetary Control
 Project Management
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy(including Whistleblowing)
 Codes of Conduct (Members/Officers)

Review of draft AGS and 
supporting evidence by Governance 
Board and recommendation of 
approval to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) (Signed by Leader and Chief 
Executive) 
Published with the Statement of 
Accounts

Governance Board with responsibility 
for: reviewing controls; drafting AGS; 
evaluating assurances; and supporting 
evidence.
(Group includes Director of Resources, 
Monitoring Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit, Head of Governance and 
Information Governance Manager)

Risk Management and Business 
Continuity Plans (BCP)
 Monitor residual risk and 

management
 Monitor risk profile
 Consider risk for new 

developments
 Risk monitoring reports
 Consider BCP arrangements
 Consider insurance arrangements

Directorate Plans
Policies and procedures; Performance Management; 
Risk Management Strategy

P
age 47



Subject: Internal Audit - Annual Fraud Report 
2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: Tel: 01706925452

1 Purpose of Report

1.1      This report provides a summary for those charged with responsibility for 
governance on the outcome of proactive and reactive anti-fraud and 
investigation work during 2015/16, with the main focus being work delivered 
by Internal Audit, which now also includes the Council’s Counter Fraud Team. 
It also outlines some of the areas of emerging fraud risk and the Council’s 
strategic and operational arrangements for managing these risks.

2 Recommendations

2.1       Report for information.

3 Background

3.1       Like any organisation of significant size and complexity, Rochdale Borough 
Council (RBC) is inherently vulnerable to risks of fraud and corruption. In 
response to these risks the Council has a range of mitigating controls that are 
used to both prevent and detect fraud and other similar malpractice that may 
exist within the Council. This report is therefore to inform the Audit and 
Governance Committee of the various actions and measures that have been 
taken during 2015/16 to mitigate the risks of fraud. 

Alternatives considered

3.2       Not applicable.

4 Financial Implications

4.1       There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



  

6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1      This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly 
throughout this period of significant change.  The Rochdale Value most linked 
to this report is that of “Acting with Integrity”.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1       Within this report consideration is given to the risks associated with fraud 
faced by the Authority and the processes and controls through which these 
risks are mitigated.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1       Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10. Key Issues and Drivers

10.1 The Council needs to ensure that public money is safeguarded and not lost 
due to fraud.  At a time when local government finances continue to be 
severely cut back, it is important that resources are directed to those who 
genuinely need it.  Money lost to fraud is money that could be used instead to 
meet the important needs of genuine people and organisations in our 
Borough.

10.2 Apart from the need to ensure public money is protected, there are also a 
number of issues and safeguards which have been put in place to direct the 
anti-fraud work, with some of the more prominent of these now being 
considered below.

Anti-Fraud Report - "Protecting the English Public Purse" (PEPP)

10.3 Previously undertaken by the former Audit Commission, an organisation 
known as The European Institute for Combatting Corruption and Fraud 
(TEICCAF) now publish this report, which sets out their view of the fraud 
landscape, what the key risks and emerging risks are, along with a checklist 
that organisations can use to self-assess against.  

Internal Audit co-ordinates the completion of self-assessment checklists such 
as this in co-operation with Services, and implements any relevant actions the 
assessment identifies as good practice.  Emerging risks highlighted in the 
report are considered for inclusion within the Annual Internal Audit Plan.

Page 49



  

The most recent version of the PEPP report was issued in November 2015, 
and Rochdale Council’s self-assessment checklist is included at Appendix 1 
of this Committee report.

Annual Fraud and Corruption Survey

10.4 The annual Fraud and Corruption Survey was completed and returned to the 
organising body in May 2016.  

10.5 RBC reported a total of 249 completed fraud investigations with a value of 
£272k.  Areas of fraud included: employee expenses, welfare assistance, 
blue badge disabled parking, Adult Care Personal Budgets, Council Tax, 
Business Rates and Housing Benefits.

10.6 The outcomes from this survey continue to inform future guidance and best 
practice in relation to fraud identification, prevention and detection. 

CIPFA Managing the Risk of Fraud 

10.7 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud is one of a 
number of useful publications that describe what action is needed for an 
organisation to be effective in countering fraud and corruption.

The five key principles of this particular Code are to:
 Acknowledge the responsibility of the governing body for countering fraud 

and corruption;
 Identify the fraud and corruption risks;
 Develop an appropriate counter fraud and corruption strategy;
 Provide resources to implement the strategy; and
 Take action in response to fraud and corruption.

Internal Audit has taken the lead role in understanding and using this good 
practice in a practical way here at Rochdale Council by having completed the 
self-assessment checklists provided, and ensuring that the principles within it 
are used as a benchmark for good practice in relation to any counter fraud 
initiatives.

Fighting Fraud Locally

10.8 Fighting Fraud Locally (FFL) is a publication that was first published in April 
2012 as part of a wider national collaboration on counter fraud.  Updated in 
2016, the FFL continues to provide a wealth of good practice, by which the 
Council’s approach to counter fraud initiatives going forward continues to be 
influenced.

Please see Appendix 2 for a completed self-assessment checklist in respect 
of the updated FFL.

10.9    In the current economic climate there is a perceived increased risk of fraud 
due to a reduction in resources. This certainly remains true in local 
government, where budgetary pressures, large spending cuts and difficult 
decisions over priorities may well weaken controls and increase the likelihood 
of fraud.

Page 50



  

10.10   To safeguard public money and ensure that funds are used for their intended 
purpose, the Council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud, supported by a 
strong policy statement and commitment to tackling fraud and corruption. This 
is backed up by various policies, procedures and codes linked to the Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Strategy. This helps to ensure that staff, the public and 
various stakeholders can have complete confidence that the affairs of the 
Council are conducted in accordance with the highest standards of probity 
and accountability and that Members and officers demonstrate the highest 
standards of honesty and integrity.

11 Structure and Roles

11.1 Working in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer, Director of Resources and 
other officers throughout the Council as appropriate, Internal Audit plays a 
part a part in ensuring that the Council has appropriate arrangements to 
deter, detect and investigate fraud. This role includes the following: 

a) Driving the continual development of a framework of anti-fraud policies 
and procedures;

b) Raising awareness of fraud risks and developing mechanisms to 
maximise the opportunities for fraud risk reporting;

c) Being involved in a joined-up response to whistleblowing allegations, 
referrals and other concerns including those received under the Council’s 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy;

d) Investigation of concerns/ allegations of financial or other irregularity;
e) Liaising with Greater Manchester Police to support criminal prosecutions;
f) Delivering a programme of proactive anti-fraud reviews;
g) Liaising with Council officers and/or schools in the Borough directly on 

various issues associated with minimising the risk of fraud;
h) Providing advice and support to managers across the Council in their own 

investigation of irregularities;
i) Providing advice and recommendations to managers on appropriate 

controls to help prevent and detect fraud and corruption; and
j) Monitoring anti-fraud activity across the Council.

11.2 In 2015/16 Internal Audit spent a total of 46 days on anti-fraud work. This 
consisted of 13 days reactive and 33 proactive (including the NFI). 

11.3    The Council’s approach to dealing with fraud extends beyond the Monitoring 
Officer and Internal Audit to all Council Services where appropriate, including 
schools

11.4 The Council’s Counter Fraud Team, which now forms part of the Internal 
Audit team, is a new team established in March 2015 following the migration 
of housing benefit investigations to the DWP. This was as a result of the 
creation of a single fraud investigation service (SFIS) within the DWP to 
investigate benefit fraud. It was therefore agreed that a local fraud function be 
retained within the Council in order to investigate non-benefit fraud, e.g. local 
council tax support, council tax discounts, business rate reliefs and 
exemptions, blue badges, Adult Care ‘personal budgets’ etc. following the 
localism agenda, the need to minimise fraud and maximise income for the 
Council was key to this decision. 

11.5     In addition to the above, the Counter Fraud Team was also a key member of 
the Partnership Enforcement Team (PET), which is co-located with the GMP 

Page 51



  

and other Council enforcement staff such as Public Protection, Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement, Community Safety, RBH enforcement and more 
recently DWP Fraud officers. The focus of the PET is in tackling fraud and 
crime across the Borough.

11.6 In general terms, there is a continuing drive to ensure that Service 
management are generally more aware of their fraud risks, and that they take 
ownership to ensure that adequate controls are in place to minimise against 
these risks.

12 Counter Fraud Team

12.1 Following the establishment of the Counter Fraud Team, it has since moved 
from being part of Revenues and Benefits to the Internal Audit team, still 
within Finance Services.

12.2 A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team in 2015/16 is 
set out below.

Performance

12.3 A total of 1,058 fraud referrals were received during the year, representing an 
increase of 86 from the previous year.  The main sources of these referrals 
came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership Enforcement 
Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant number of 
these do not progress to formal investigation by the team as they are either 
passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that 
there is not enough information to progress the matter.

12.4 The team achieved £282,033 in additional savings and overpayments. Of this 
figure, overpayment and bills created amounted to £270,233 from the 
following teams; Benefits Team, Council Tax Team, Business Rates Team, 
Blue Badge Team and Adult Care Team. Additional income from fraud 
financial penalties and administrative penalties was generated amounting to 
£7,535, with court costs received amounting to £4,265.   

12.5 78% of referrals resulted in positive outcomes, whilst allowing for a 30% 
margin for malicious and unfounded allegations of fraud.

12.6 A total of 36 sanctions were achieved, consisting of 10 prosecutions, 8 formal 
cautions and 18 fines for fraud.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

12.7 The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

12.8 The Team tackled a sample of the NFI Council Tax Single Person Discount 
matches, which are aimed at identifying fraud and error in households where 
customers claim a 25% discount off their Council Tax bill. The matches were 
sifted and checked, and then proactive visits took place, which resulted in 
savings of £20,000 being identified. 

Page 52



  

12.9 The Team also tackled the NFI Housing Benefit (HB) matches with Council 
Tax Support (CTS) in payment. To date over £43,000 has been raised in 
overpayments from investigating this data. 

12.10  The team also assisted in gathering information for some of the Adult Care 
Personal Budget NFI matches.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

12.11 The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies were made to over 290 
Data Protection Requests in 2015/2016, not including the work that is 
completed in the PET. 

12.12 Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills 
and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and 
detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams 
attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional 
Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community Cohesion & 
Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; Strategic Housing, 
DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service officials.

12.13 The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 280 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders.  In addition, a total of 43 fraud referrals were received as a result 
of the PET. 

12.14 The experienced investigators have participated in days of action and 
proactive visits throughout the year, which has resulted in savings being 
generated in respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Support.

13 Reactive Fraud Cases

13.1 A number of allegations of fraud were referred to Internal Audit during the 
year which were subject to initial investigation. However, to date, none of 
these claims have been substantiated and no significant issues have been 
highlighted as a consequence. 

14 Proactive Anti-fraud work

14.1 Some of the key areas of focus during the year included the following;

National Fraud Initiative 

14.2 RBC fully participates in the biennial National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data 
matching exercise that is run by the Cabinet Office.  The NFI is a proactive 
anti-fraud initiative which matches electronic data within and between public 
and private sector bodies in order to highlight possible instances of fraud and 
error.  Data from various Council systems is provided by participants to the 
Cabinet Office, and IT data matching facilities are then used to analyse, 
compare and ultimately to match this data in accordance with set criteria for 
doing so.  The matched data is then returned to us in the form of a series of 

Page 53



  

reports that are then checked by appropriate staff to determine whether fraud 
is suspected, or whether the data is present on the report due to error, or 
indeed due to genuine reasons.  

14.3 The main monetary related outcomes from the most recent NFI exercise are 
that funds have been recovered, or are in the process of being recovered, in 
respect of the following areas:

 £40,721 from duplicate payments to suppliers;
 £59,493 from people claiming Housing Benefit inappropriately;
 £7,394 from overpayments of pension to deceased people; and
 £5,057 from overpayment of residential care fees to deceased people.
 TOTAL - £112,665

14.4 Non-monetary outcomes are also important too, such as information leading 
to the cancellation of several blue badge parking permits as a result of badge 
holder’s now being deceased, thus minimising the risk of family/friends using 
the badge instead.  It is noted that these are not due to fraudulent activity, 
merely the fact that official records show the badge holder is deceased yet 
the Council had not been informed.  Cancelling badges in this way ensures 
that the badge cannot be renewed when it expires, thus proactively nullifying 
the risk of someone fraudulently reapplying and having the badge renewed in 
the name of the deceased person.

14.5 Progress with the NFI, and anti-fraud in general, is reported to the Director of 
Resources and the Cabinet Member for Finance at periodic times throughout 
each year.

14.6 The Council is due to receive the next batch of NFI data matching reports at 
the end of January 2017, at which point the checking process will commence 
once again.

Internal Data Matching

14.7 Internal Audit also makes use of various standard IT facilities and specialised 
audit software (ACL) in order to analyse and match data from key corporate 
systems to establish patterns and discrepancies which may be an indicator of 
fraud.  This work is useful as it supplements the biennial NFI exercise with 
data analysis that is current and absolutely meaningful at the time of 
processing, thereby meaning that the opportunity to prevent and detect fraud 
is reduced still further.

14.8 Examples of this include:

 Work was undertaken to analyse and further refine data received from the 
former Audit Commission relating to Council Tax Single Person Discount 
fraud.  This allowed limited staffing resource to be targeted at checking data 
matches of greater quality.

 A data match, that in a previous NFI exercise highlighted a £70k fraud at the 
Council, is recreated annually to check the authenticity of instances where 
members of staff and companies trading with the Council have the same bank 
account details.  The small number of data matches falling into this category 
were found to exist for genuine reasons.

Page 54



  

            General Anti-fraud Training

14.9 An on-line training package specifically aligned with the local government 
Fighting Fraud Locally (FFL) strategy has been rolled out to officers and 
Members via the e-learning platform.  This same training is also part of the 
corporate induction process for all new starters.

Whistleblowing Policy

14.10 The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy aligns with published best practice and is 
designed to make it as easy as possible for someone to report a concern.  
Concerns are reported under this policy, with Internal Audit keeping metrics in 
this regard in order to be able to measure the ongoing effectiveness of this 
policy. The existence and use of this policy continues to be promoted to all 
staff via online media such as the intranet.

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

14.11 A policy is in place and global communications have been issued to increase 
staff awareness of this area of risk.  

Council Tax Single Person Discount (SPD)

14.12 Resources continue to be carefully allocated and used in order to ensure that 
proportionate efforts are invested in minimising this particular risk of fraud.  
Both the NFI data matching reports and selective services offered from 
external companies such as credit checking companies are used whenever 
required to assist the Council in ensuring that SPD fraud is minimised.  

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy (AFACS)

14.13 The AFACS itself is reviewed on an annual basis and re-published on the 
Intranet and Council website accordingly. The most recent full review was 
concluded in December 2015 and a global communication was issued during 
2015/16 to summarise its content and raise awareness amongst all staff.

15 Key priorities for 2016/17

15.1 Time and resource is normally allocated for the prevention and detection of 
fraud in the Annual Internal Audit Plan across the following areas:

 Proactive Work - Internal Audit will engage in work aimed at minimising the 
risk of fraud before it occurs by engaging in a range of activities.  A Proactive 
Anti-Fraud Plan has been specifically developed to guide many aspects of 
work performed. The Counter Fraud Team itself will continue to develop its 
remit and focus for identifying fraud in a range of areas (as highlighted 
previously) and to ensure that any proven frauds lead to prosecution and 
recovery of any financial loss;

 Reactive Work - Internal Audit are ready and equipped to provide a service 
to management by leading and / or assisting with cases of suspected fraud 
that may arise;

Page 55



  

 Raising awareness - Internal Audit will continue to lead and / or support 
Council services to improve levels of awareness of fraud risks amongst 
managers, staff and partners;

 Communication - Internal Audit will seek to improve the effective 
communication of Council policy, procedures and codes relating to anti-fraud;
 

 Fraud risk assessment - Internal Audit will build upon work already 
performed in this area and ensure that fraud risks remain current and receive 
the attention of management in proportion to the risk faced;
 

 External liaison - Internal Audit will further build upon links established with 
the police and the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) to ensure that future 
fraud investigations proceed as smoothly as possible;

 Co-ordination - Internal Audit will continue to work with colleagues, 
especially those in the HR Service and the Counter Fraud Team, to share 
expertise and maximise the efficiency and effectiveness of anti-fraud activity 
across the Council;

 Fraud monitoring - Internal Audit will continue to maintain intelligence and 
oversight of fraud cases and outcomes in order to support decision making for 
management;

 Collaborative Working - Internal Audit will continue to fully participate in the 
AGMA Fraud Group and to ensure that learning points and other good 
practice is considered and implemented at Rochdale Council where 
appropriate; the Counter Fraud Team is also a key member of the Partnership 
Enforcement Team which continues to have a very positive impact on tackling 
crime and fraud across the Borough; and

 New Initiatives - Internal Audit will ensure that relevant new initiatives in the 
anti-fraud field are duly considered and good practice implemented within 
Rochdale Council where necessary.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 56



  

Appendix 1 – Self-Assessment Checklist from Protecting the English Public Purse

Completion of this checklist should give an indication as to whether sound governance and counter-fraud arrangements are in place and are 
working as intended.

Yes No Comments/ Action

General
1.a) Do we have a zero-tolerance 
policy towards fraud?

Yes The whole tone of the anti-fraud drive being co-ordinated by Internal Audit is 
one of embedding a zero tolerance against fraud.  RBC's Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy (AFACS) states that "The Council is resolute that the 
culture and tone of the Authority is one of honesty and opposition to fraud and 
corruption".

Referrals are always made to the Police where there is evidence that point 
towards a criminal offence having been committed. This is supported by the 
number of prosecutions secured from the work of the Counter Fraud Team.

1.b) Does our fraud and corruption 
detection results demonstrate that 
commitment to zero tolerance?

Yes Evidence of this is manifested in various ways, not least by the work that is 
undertaken by the Council’s Counter Fraud Team and the detection results 
achieved by that team (please refer to the main body of this report above).

2. Do we have a corporate fraud 
team?
 

Yes Previously within Revenues and Benefits, the Corporate Fraud Team (known 
as the Counter Fraud Team) is now positioned organisationally as part of the 
Internal Audit Team.

3. Does a councillor have portfolio 
responsibility for fighting fraud across 
the council?

Yes This responsibility is allocated to the Portfolio Holder for Finance.

4 a) Have we assessed our council 
against the TEICCAF fraud detection 
benchmark analysis?

N/A N/A This analysis has not yet been released by TEICCAF. Appendix 2 has been 
included to cover all key aspects.

P
age 57



  

Yes No Comments/ Action

4 b) Does that benchmark analysis of 
fraud detection identify any fraud types 
which we should give greater attention 
to?

N/A N/A This analysis has not yet been released by TEICCAF. Appendix 2 has been 
included to cover all key aspects.

5. Are we confident we have sufficient 
counter-fraud capacity and capability 
to detect and prevent non-benefit 
(corporate) fraud, once SFIS has been 
fully implemented?

Yes The Counter Fraud Team is now established and continues to develop and 
expand its remit, post SFIS.  After losing 2 experienced fraud investigators to 
the SFIS, throughout the first quarter of 2015/16 the team gained three new 
staff, including two trainee investigators and one apprentice.

Training investments have been made in the new staff by way of 2 members of 
the team now having completed the CIPFA Fraud Technician Course and 
other relevant training such as PACE investigations.  

6. Do we have appropriate and 
proportionate defences against the 
emerging fraud risks, in particular:

 Right to Buy fraud
 No recourse to Public Funds 

fraud.

Yes Right to buy is the responsibility of Rochdale Boroughwide Housing and 
therefore no longer the direct responsibility of the Council. However local 
authorities do hold the power to investigate tenancy fraud through the 
Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act, and investigations are still 
undertaken, specifically where they are linked to council tax or local council tax 
support. Anti-fraud work in relation to No recourse to Public Funds tends to be 
handled by the Council’s established Counter Fraud Team.

P
age 58



  

Appendix 2 – Self-Assessment Checklist from Fighting Fraud Locally

Yes No Comments and Actions

1. 



Relevant risks are on the risk register and regularly reviewed. Updates 
on fraud and corruption risks are report to Audit and Governance 
Committee on at least an annual basis together with an evaluation of 
the Council’s response to these risks and the overall approach to fraud.

2. 



The Council has assessed the risks highlighted within both the PPP 
and FFL publications.  In terms of horizon scanning, the Council does 
take account of the “emerging risks” sections in national publications 
such as PPP etc., and relevant intelligence is gained by both Internal 
Audit and the Counter Fraud Team through the various networks in 
which they are directly involved and input to on an ongoing basis.

3. 



There is an annual fraud report that is presented to Audit and 
Governance Committee in June each year which sets out a summary of 
the approach to and outcomes from both proactive and reactive anti-
fraud work, as well as the response to best practice in fraud from 
checklists such as this.  

4.


Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy (AFACS) is in place and has been 
actively promoted during the course of the year to all staff.

P
age 59



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

5. 



Various arrangements are in place, including documents such as the 
Codes of Conduct for both staff and Members, AFACS, Whistleblowing 
Policy etc., Code of Ethics, anti-fraud training awareness training. All of 
these form part of the Corporate Induction process.

6. 


There are various examples of fraud risks being included on the 
Corporate and Service Risk Registers.

7.



Internal Audit continues to work proactively with all areas of the Council 
to ensure that input and advice on controls is provided and embedded 
within all new significant developments, which will always include a 
consideration of fraud risks. Similarly, the Risk Manager liaises directly 
with all Service areas offering advice on risk management. The work 
undertaken in all these areas is reported regularly to Audit and 
Governance Committee.

8.


There have been various examples of this both in internal and external 
communications, including the local press/media.  The Council regards 
it as an important thing to do in order to act as a deterrent to others.

9.



The AFACS dictates the Councils overall approach and policy to cover 
all such arrangements and this continues to be actively promoted to all 
staff within the Council.  All staff must also undertake a short e-learning 
module on the subject of anti-fraud as part of the Corporate Induction 
process.  An informed workforce helps to ensure that fraudulent activity 
has a better chance of being noticed; also that staff are aware of what 
to do in terms of reporting any suspicions they may have. Both Internal 
Audit and the Counter Fraud Team have a well-developed pool of 
resources and tools to support the detection and subsequent 
investigation of any alleged fraud.

P
age 60



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

10.



The Head of Internal Audit liaises closely with the Monitoring Officer 
who takes a lead in relation to developing and implementing policies 
supporting ethical governance. Internal Audit takes a lead in terms of 
the AFACS. With regard to compliance, this is primarily assessed on a 
rolling basis through work included on the Internal Audit Annual Plan. 
Mechanisms are also in place for any issues on conduct and behaviour 
to be reported and followed up as considered appropriate, with any 
outcomes being reported through to Audit and Governance Committee 
via the Monitoring Officer. 

11.



It has been confirmed with the HR Service that appropriate vetting 
checks are undertaken at the recruitment stage.  Relevant publications 
in this area of expertise, such as “Slipping through the Net”, have been 
considered and factored into working practices where appropriate.

12.



Both Members and staff are aware of this requirement via the 
respective Codes of Conduct which are communicated globally and 
also form part of the Corporate Induction process. The officers Code of 
Conduct was refreshed in 2015/16 and communicated to all staff. 

Compliance is monitored and reported as per the response to question 
10 above.

13.



Aside from the responsibility placed on all staff and Elected Members 
to play their part in ensuring this culture is embedded in all Council 
activities via the AFACS, both Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud 
Team take a lead in supporting this culture through global 
communications, training, proactive and reactive work, liaison with 
other enforcement partners, prosecutions and financial recovery work.

P
age 61



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

14.



A Whistleblowing Policy is in place and forms part of the wider Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Strategy.  Internal Audit monitors the number of 
referrals under the policy.  Users of the policy are clearly signposted to 
external sources if they feel that is a better way of channelling their 
suspicions.

15.



The standard terms and conditions of contract to which all contractors 
and third parties sign up to includes, in Section 3, an obligation to 
comply with all mandatory policies of the Authority, one of which is the 
AFACS, which includes the whistleblowing policy. The whistleblowing 
policy clearly states that no discrimination against whistle-blowers will 
be tolerated and their identity will be protected in line with their wishes. 

16.



Internal Audit work is directed by a risk based audit plan which 
supports the delivery of an overall opinion on the Council’s control 
environment, which includes an assessment of the management of 
fraud risks. Furthermore the business case to support the 
establishment of the Counter Fraud Team in March 2015 was founded 
on the Council’s desire to minimise fraud and maximise income for the 
Council. The complement of staff within this team will continue to be 
assessed in the light of the risks assessed and outcomes achieved. 

17.



The work of the Internal Audit function is directed by an Annual Audit 
Plan which is approved by Audit and Governance Committee in March 
of each year. The remit of Internal Audit covers all services and 
activities undertaken by the Council, including the management of any 
relationships with third party contractors. The proactive anti-fraud remit 
of the Counter Fraud Team continues to be challenged and reviewed 
as new issues are identified and outcomes will continue to be reported 
through to Audit and Governance Committee. 

18.



Monthly reports are produced by the Counter Fraud Team in order to 
monitor and manage workload, levels of performance and outcomes.  
Reference to some of these outcomes is included within the main body 
of this report. Data is also made available externally in compliance with 
the Transparency Code.

P
age 62



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

19.



Officers within Internal Audit have always had access to all areas of the 
Council in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter which is approved 
by the Audit and Governance Committee. Similarly, the Counter Fraud 
Team will be granted access to whatever confidential information is 
considered appropriate to further any investigations they are 
undertaking.

20.



Publication of such cases, particularly when a positive outcome is 
achieved by the Authority, is actively encouraged as evidenced by 
certain cases in early 2016 which were in the local public media 
following the issue of press releases by the Communications team. 

21.


A system is in place to risk assess referrals received by the Counter 
Fraud Team. Any referrals to Internal Audit are subject to an initial 
assessment to determine if further work is appropriate.

22.



All these areas are covered within the AFACS, specifically in the 
Counter Fraud Prosecution and Sanction Policy, and covered within the 
work of the Counter Fraud Team and Internal Audit.

23.



Aside from the Internal Audit Annual Plan which is approved by Audit 
and Governance Committee each March, the approach to and 
outcomes from the fraud response plan is communicated at least 
annually to Audit and Governance Committee in June of each year, 
with periodic updates provided where considered relevant and 
appropriate. Furthermore, the Counter Fraud Team reports directly to 
the Head of Internal Audit which enhances the links between the two 
teams.

P
age 63



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

24.



This is always the case and has been evidenced by way of recovery via 
the Proceeds of Crime Act where appropriate. This is also 
demonstrated by the financial recoveries achieved by the Counter 
Fraud Team, supported by prosecutions where a fraud is proven.

25.


The zero tolerance approach is a cornerstone of the Council’s Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Strategy.  Reports to Committee are normally 
taken by the Head of Internal Audit on a quarterly basis and annually.

26.



Proactive work is factored into the work of the Counter Fraud Team, 
Partnership Enforcement Team and anti-work fraud within the wider 
Internal Audit function.  This work programme tackles most, if not all, of 
the areas identified as more susceptible to loss through fraud in 
accordance with existing knowledge, recent experience, current fraud 
risk assessments, intelligence from local networks and outputs from 
national publications. Specific areas covered by the Counter Fraud 
Team are set out in the main body of the report above.

27.



Collaborative working is a key theme in the work of the Council’s 
Counter Fraud Team.  Please refer to the main body of this report for 
more detail e.g. involvement with the Partnership Enforcement Team 
(PET).

P
age 64



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

28.



Examples of data sharing are in place, with this being somewhat of a 
growth area in terms of the desire to work as efficiently and effectively, 
not only to minimise the risk of fraud, but to deliver an overall better 
service to the citizens of the Borough via the Public Service Reform 
agenda.  Safeguards are in place, and continue to be further 
developed, in order to ensure that data sharing is done legally e.g. 
Privacy Impact Assessments, Data Sharing Agreements and training 
for staff to understand their responsibilities in this regard. The 
operations of the Partnership Enforcement Team also involve close 
liaison with and sharing of relevant data with other enforcement 
agencies.

29.



Data analytics, i.e. the use of ICT facilities to process and analyse 
quantities of data is used in certain instances.  Examples of this in 
practice include analysing datasets relating to Council Tax Single 
Person Discount, Blue Badge, Payroll and Creditors.

Output from data analytics exercises are either used to influence the 
direction of anti-fraud resources in terms of assisting with the more 
focused targeting of investigatory work, or by providing more timely and 
complete assurance to management where the output indicates no 
fraudulent activity.

30.



Internal Audit plays a lead role in facilitating the NFI process to ensure 
deadlines are achieved and appropriate action is taken on the data 
matches identified. Progress and outcomes are reported periodically to 
the Audit and Governance Committee as well as to the Director of 
Resources and Portfolio Holder for Finance.

P
age 65



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

31.



The Counter Fraud Team has a mix of skills and experience, with all 
staff being appropriately trained and accredited commensurate with 
their job role.  Staff in Internal Audit that take responsibility with anti-
fraud matters are also appropriately accredited and/or trained to do so.

32.



The Counter Fraud Team comprises staff with a mix of knowledge and 
experience, some of whom have a strong depth of experience in the 
areas covered by anti-fraud work. This knowledge is shared within the 
team primarily through on the job training, supplemented by more 
formal training where considered necessary and appropriate. External 
training opportunities to enhance core skills and knowledge are also 
pursued on an ongoing basis.

33. 



Strong links are maintained with both internal and external enforcement 
agencies through the Partnership Enforcement Team which offers 
access to a wide variety of skills, knowledge and resource to support 
fraud investigatory work. In the past the Counter Fraud Team have 
used the Trafford Council Financial Investigations Team for Proceeds 
of Crime Act/ financial investigations; however since this has recently 
moved over to SFIS, the Police have offered the use of their financial 
investigators if required. Alongside this, close links are made with the 
National Anti-Fraud Network which also provides specialist services 
where they may be required.

P
age 66



  

Yes No Comments and Actions

34.



Reports covering instances of proven fraud always cover two areas:
 the investigation into substantiating whether the fraud took 

place or not and who was responsible; and
 an analysis of the root cause and what controls can be 

implemented to minimise future risk.
In the event that control weaknesses are identified, actions are agreed 
with management to resolve these issues. Furthermore, where such 
weaknesses may apply to other Council Services, a more corporate 
audit report or communication may be issued to all Service areas to 
share the lessons learned and ensure that controls are embedded to 
mitigate the risk of such issues occurring in all Services.

P
age 67



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

The Audit Plan, including interim findings, for 

Rochdale Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2016

11 April 2016

Graham Nunns
Engagement Lead
T 0113 200 2538
E graham.nunns@uk.gt.com

Gareth Mills
Engagement Manager
T 0113 200 2535
E gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Daniel Watson
Assistant Manager
T 0161 234 6344
E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 7



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015/16 2

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Rochdale Borough Council, the Audit and Governance Committee), an overview 

of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management. 

We are required to perform our audit in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit 

Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. 

Our responsibilities under the Code are to:

• give an opinion on the Council's financial statements

• satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Yours faithfully,

Grant Thornton UK LLP

11 April 2016

Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2016

Chair and Members of the Audit and Governance Committee

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale

OL16 1XU

Grant Thornton UK LLP

4 Hardman Square
Spinningfields

Manchester
M3 3EB

T +44 (0)161-953-6900

www.grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 69



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Contents

Section

Understanding your business 4

Developments and other requirements relevant to the audit 5

Our audit approach 6

Materiality 7

Significant risks identified 8

Other risks identified 11

Value for Money 13

Results of interim audit work 15

Key dates 18

Fees and independence 19

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 20

3

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

the Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely 

for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 70



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Understanding your business

Our response

� We will consider the Council's 
plans for addressing its financial 
position as part of our work to 
reach our VFM conclusion.

� We will consider how the Council has 
reflected changes to its 
responsibilities in relation to public 
health and how it is working with 
partners, as part of our work in 
reaching our VfM conclusion.

� We will review the progress made by 
the Council and partner organisations 
in integrating with the health sector.

In planning our audit we need to understand the challenges and opportunities the Council is facing.  We set out a summary of our understanding below.

Challenges / opportunities

1. Autumn Statement 2015 and LG 
financial settlement

• The Chancellor  proposed that 
local government would have 
greater control over its finances, 
although this was accompanied 
by a 24% reduction in central 
government funding to local 
government over 5 years. 

• Despite the increased ownership 
and control, the financial health of 
local government is likely to 
become increasingly challenging.

4. Integration with health sector

� Developments such as the increased 
scope of the Better Care Fund and 
transfer of responsibility for public 
health to local government are 
intended to increase integration 
between health and social care.

� The Council’s plans for a significantly 
enlarged pooled budget from 2016-17 
are currently being reviewed by the 
Executive.

3. Financial pressures

• Despite the challenges, the 
Council has achieved its 2015-
16 budget and set a balanced 
budget for 2016-17. However, 
it needs to continue to manage 
a reported funding gap of £35m 
for the two years 2016-17 
(£22m) and 2017-18 (£13m)

• The Council continues to 
review how it provides its 
services to identify potential 
areas for further savings.

� We will complete a review of the 
Council's financial resilience as 
part of our VFM conclusion and 
report our findings back to the 
Audit and Risk Management 
Committee in August 2016.

2. Devolution 

• The Autumn Statement 2015 
also included proposals to 
devolve further powers to 
localities. 

• The Devolution agenda in 
Greater Manchester is well 
advanced and the Council has 
begun to implement the 
Borough’s joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and Locality 
Plan from April 2016.

� We will consider the Council's  
plans as part of the local 
devolution agenda as part of our 
work in reaching our VFM 
conclusion.

� We will provide support and 
challenge to the plans based on 
our knowledge of devolution 
locally.

5. Earlier closedown of accounts

� The Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 require councils to bring forward 
the approval and audit of financial 
statements to 31 May and 31 July 
respectively by 2017-18.

� The Council’s finance team have 
worked hard to bring forward their 
deadlines and preparations for the 
2015-16 accounts process.

� We have worked with the finance 
team throughout 2015-16 to identify 
areas where efficiencies could be 
made from our prior year audit. 

� Working closely with the finance team, 
we have brought a significant amount 
of our audit work forward to our 
interim audit visit which should result 
in a smooth and efficient final audit 
visit in June and July.

� We have shared a checklist of 
common issues in Council accounts 
so that officers can review the 
disclosures prior to providing their 
draft accounts.

� We aim to complete our accounts 
audit and report our findings to the 
Audit and Governance Committee on 
1 August 2016.  

4

P
age 71



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Developments and other requirements relevant to your audit

In planning our audit we also consider the impact of key developments in the sector and take account of national audit requirements as set out in the Code of Audit Practice 

and associated guidance.

Developments and other requirements

1. Fair value accounting

• A new accounting standard on fair value (IFRS 
13) has been adopted and applies for the first 
time in 2015-16.

• This will have a particular impact on the 
valuation of surplus assets within property, plant 
and equipment which are now required to be 
valued at fair value in line with IFRS 13 rather 
than the existing use value of the asset.

• Investment property assets are required to be 
carried at fair value as in previous years.

• There are a number of additional disclosure 
requirements of IFRS 13.

4. Joint arrangements

� Councils are involved in a number of 
pooled budgets and alternative delivery 
models which they need to account for 
in their financial statements.

� The Council is working closely with the 
CCG to develop plans for a 
significantly enlarged pooled budget for 
2016-17.

Our response

� We have discussed this issue with the finance 
team and will keep the Council informed of 
changes to the financial  reporting requirements 
for 2015-16 through on-going discussions. 
Representatives from the finance team 
attended our technical update workshop.

� We have held early discussions on reviewing 
the basis of valuation of your surplus assets 
and investment property assets to ensure they 
are valued on the appropriate basis.

� We will review your draft financial statements to 
ensure you have complied with the disclosure 
requirements of IFRS 13.

� We have shared guidance with officers on 
the requirements of the Narrative 
Statement.

� We will review the Narrative Statement to 
ensure it reflects the requirements of the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and make 
recommendations for improvement, if 
applicable.

� We will review your arrangements for 
producing the AGS and consider whether 
it is consistent with our knowledge of the 
Council and the requirements of CIPFA 
guidance.

2. Corporate governance

� The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require local authorities to produce a 
Narrative Statement, which reports on 
your financial performance and use of 
resources in the year, and replaces the 
explanatory foreword.

� You are required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) as part of 
your financial statements.

� We will review your proposals for 
accounting for these arrangements 
against the requirements of the CIPFA 
Code of Practice.

� We will review your plans for 
developing further pooled budgets as 
part of our value for money conclusion.

3. Highways Network Assets

� Although you are not required to include 
Highways Network Assets (HNA) until 
2016-17, this will be a significant change 
to your financial statements and you will 
need to carry out valuation work this year 
to inform the opening balance sheet 
position on 1 April 2016.

� We will discuss your plans for valuation of 
these assets at an early stage to gain an 
understanding of your approach and 
suggest areas for improvement.

� We have discussed with the senior 
finance team the possibility of performing 
a review of the Council's work on HNA in 
the Autumn. This would ensure the 
Council can take into account our 
feedback and any resulting actions well in 
advance of producing the 2016-17 
accounts.

5

P
age 72



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Our audit approach

6

� Understanding the environment and 
the entity

� Understanding management's focus 
and areas of concern 

� Evaluating the preliminary financial 
results for the year and comparison 
with budgets

� Reviewing the design and 
implementation of the internal financial 
control systems to the extent that they 
have a bearing on the risk areas

Update our understanding of the Council 
and key events in the year

Develop an assessment of risks and 
agree with management

� Consider material balances and 
assess the risk associated with 
these balances

� Assess risks as either "significant 
risks" or "other risks" and develop 
an appropriate audit approach

� Report risk assessments and 
planned audit approach to those 
charged with governance through 
this Audit Plan

Complete audit testing, focussing on 
areas of higher audit risk

� Complete audit testing, including 
use of analytical review 
procedures and tests of detail as 
appropriate for the level of 
assessed risk

� Report any issues or proposed 
adjustments to management as 
identified

� Reassess the risk assessment if 
significant audit issues are 
identified

Completion and reporting

� Report findings to those charged 
with governance through the 
Audit Findings report and present 
this to the Audit Committee

� Perform a review of the financial 
statements and ensure 
compliance with relevant 
accounting guidelines and 
disclosure requirements

� Review  post balance sheet 
events right up to the date the 
financial statements are approved

Internal audit
We review the work performed by Internal Audit during the year to assess whether 
the outcome of this work highlights any additional risk areas for our audit. 

Materiality
An item would be considered to be material to the financial statements if, through its 
omission or non-disclosure, the financial statements would no longer show a true and 
fair view.  Our materiality calculation is discussed in more detail on page 7 of this Plan.

Materiality is set at the outset of planning to ensure that an appropriate level of audit 
work is planned. It is then used throughout the audit process in order to assess the 
impact of any item on the financial statements. Any identified errors or differences 
greater than 5% of materiality will be recorded on a schedule of potential 
misstatements in the Audit Findings (ISA260) Report in August 2016.

Our audit approach is based on an assessment of the audit risk relevant to the individual elements of the financial statements. We focus much of our audit effort on areas 

that we deem to be of highest risk of material misstatement. The diagram below summarises our overall audit approach and the following pages cover significant and 

other risk areas identified and our planned audit approach to each of these areas.

P
age 73



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Materiality

In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit.

The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'. 

As is usual in public sector entities, we have determined materiality for the statements as a whole as a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For 

purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £11,523k (being 2% of gross revenue expenditure from 2014-15). We will consider whether this 

level is appropriate on receipt of the 2015-16 accounts and will advise you if this needs revision.

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with 

governance because we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly 

inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £576k (being 5% of the overall materiality level).

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which 

misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'.

We have identified the following items as sensitive. We have not set a separate level of materiality for these items, but we will discuss any errors with management with a 

view to amending and reporting to those charged with governance if necessary.

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation

Cash and cash equivalents All transactions made by the Council affect the cash balance and it is therefore considered to be material by 
nature.

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary bandings and exit packages 
in notes to the statements

Although the value of these disclosures is usually immaterial, public interest in these disclosures and the 
statutory requirement for them to be made, means that they are considered to be material by nature.

Disclosure of auditors' remuneration in notes to the statements Although the value of these disclosures is usually immaterial, public interest in these disclosures and the 
statutory requirement for them to be made, means that they are considered to be material by nature.

Disclosure of members’ allowances Although the value of these disclosures is usually immaterial, public interest in these disclosures and the 
statutory requirement for them to be made, means that they are considered to be material by nature.

7

P
age 74



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Significant risks identified
"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgemental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgemental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA 315). In this section we outline the significant risks of material misstatement which we have identified.  There are two presumed significant risks which are 

applicable to all audits under auditing standards (International Standards on Auditing - ISAs) which are listed below:

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures

The revenue cycle
includes fraudulent 
transactions

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be 
misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that 
there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to 
revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams 
at Rochdale Borough Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 
recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Rochdale Borough 
Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Management over-
ride of controls

Under ISA 240 it is presumed that the risk of management 
over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

Work completed to date:

� Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management

� Testing of journal entries for months 1 – 10. Our work has not identified any issues.

Further work planned:

� Review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

� Testing of journal entries for months 11 - 12

� Review of unusual significant transactions.

8

In addition to the two standard significant risks above, we have also identified three additional significant risks detailed over the next two pages. These have been deemed 

significant given their level of value and judgement and, in the case of IFRS 13, as a result of the first year application of this new Standard.  These additional significant risks 

are not unique to the Council and will be included on the majority of our local government audit plans.

P
age 75



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Significant risks identified (continued)

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures

Valuation of property, 
plant and equipment

The Council revalues its assets on a rolling basis 
over a four year period. The Code requires that 
the Council ensures that the carrying value at the 
balance sheet date is not materially different 
from current value. 

This represents a significant estimate by 
management in the financial statements.

Work completed to date:

� Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate

� Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

� Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

� Discussions with valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of the 
key assumptions

� Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent 
with our understanding.

Further work planned:

� Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's
asset register and 2015-16 accounts

� Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year
and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current 
value.

Valuation of surplus 
assets and investment 
properties

The CIPFA Code of Practice has implemented 
IFRS 13 for the 2015-16 financial statements. 
The Council is required to include surplus assets 
within property, plant and equipment in its 
financial statements at fair value, as defined by 
IFRS13. 

The basis on which fair value is defined for 
investment property is also different to that used 
in previous years.

This represents a significant change in the basis 
for estimation of these balances in the financial 
statements. 

There are also extensive disclosure 
requirements under IFRS 13 which the Council 
needs to comply with.

Work completed to date:

� Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate

� Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

� Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

� Discussions with valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of the 
key assumptions

� Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent 
with our understanding.

Further work planned:

� Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input appropriately into the 
Council's asset register and 2015-16 accounts

� Review of the disclosures made by the Council in its financial statements to ensure they are in 
accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice and IFRS 13.

9

P
age 76



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Significant risks identified (continued)

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures

Valuation of pension fund 
net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as 
reflected in its balance sheet represent significant 
estimates in the financial statements.

Work planned:

� We will identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund 
liability is not materially misstated. We will also assess whether these controls were 
implemented as expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material 
misstatement.

� We will review the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your 
pension fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is 
carried out.

� We will undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions 
made. 

� We will review the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in 
notes to the financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary.

10

P
age 77



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Other risks identified 
"The auditor should evaluate the design and determine the implementation of the entity's controls, including relevant control activities, over those risks for which, in the 

auditor's judgement, it is not possible or practicable to reduce the risks of material misstatement at the assertion level to an acceptably low level with audit evidence obtained 

only from substantive procedures"(ISA (UK & Ireland) 315). 

In this section we outline the other risks of material misstatement which we have identified as a result of our planning.

Other risks Description Audit approach

Operating expenses Creditors related to core activities (including
suppliers) understated or not recorded in the 
correct period
(Operating expenses understated)

Work completed to date:

� Documented and confirmed our understanding of the controls in place in the accounts payable 
system

� Reviewed the Council’s process for identifying and processing accruals

� Tested a sample of expenditure transactions from months 1 – 10 to supporting evidence. Our work 
has not identified any issues.

Further work planned:

� Test a sample of expenditure transactions from months 11 – 12 to supporting evidence

� Test a sample of non-pay expenditure transactions from April 2016 to confirm they have been 
accounted for in the correct year

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration accruals understated 
(Remuneration expenses not correct, payroll 
costs understated)

Work completed to date:

� Documented and confirmed our understanding of the controls in place in the payroll system

� Tested a sample of payroll transactions from months 1 – 11 to supporting documentation. Our work 
has not identified any issues.

Further work planned:

� Test a sample of payroll transactions from month 12 to supporting evidence

� Reconcile total payroll costs from the payroll subsystem to the general ledger

� Perform a monthly trend analysis to identify months with unusually high or low pay levels.

Property, Plant and 
Equipment – fixed asset 
register

The Council has implemented a new asset 
register during the year.

There is a risk that data is not transferred 
completely and accurately from the old asset 
register to the new system.

Work completed to date:

� Reviewed the controls in place over the transfer of data to the new asset register

� Considered the review performed on this matter by internal audit and noted their findings

� Tested the reconciliation between systems to confirm the completeness of data transferred

� Tested a sample of asset data between systems to confirm the accuracy of data transferred.

11

P
age 78



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous section but will include:

Other audit responsibilities

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in the Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and consistent 

with our knowledge of the Council

• We will read the Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the statements on which we give an opinion and disclosures are in line with the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice

• We will carry out work on consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about the accounts and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the accounts. 

• Heritage assets

• Investments (long term and short term)

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Borrowing and other liabilities (long term and short term)

• Provisions

• Usable and unusable reserves

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes

• Statement of cash flows and associated notes

• Financing and investment income and expenditure

• Taxation and non-specific grants

• Schools balances and transactions

• Segmental reporting note

• Officers' remuneration note

• Leases note

• Related party transactions note

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note

• Financial instruments note

• PFI and similar contracts note

• Collection Fund and associated notes

12

P
age 79



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Value for Money

Background

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') and the NAO Code of 
Audit Practice ('the Code') require us to consider whether the Council has put in 
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work in November 2015.

The Act and NAO guidance state that for local government bodies, auditors are 
required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has put proper 
arrangements in place. 

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 

properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 

outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out in the following table:

Sub-criteria Detail

Informed 

decision making

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of good governance

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making and performance management

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control.

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities.

Working with 

partners and 

other third 

parties

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities.

13

P
age 80



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Value for Money (continued)
Risk assessment

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial risk assessment, we considered:

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies, including Ofsted

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its supporting information

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements.

We have identified significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. The NAO's Code of Audit Practice defines ‘significant’ as follows: 

A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of  interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance has both 

qualitative and quantitative aspects. 

We have set out below the risks we have identified, how they relate to the Code sub-criteria, and the work we propose to undertake to address these risks.

14

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address risk

Health & Social Care integration:
The Council is seeking to deliver wide ranging changes and 
greater integration to ensure the financial sustainability of adult 
health and social care services. 

The Council is working closely with the CCG to deliver 
integrated health and social care to the Borough. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for working 
effectively with third parties to deliver strategic 
priorities, managing risks effectively and maintaining 
a sound system of internal control.

We will consider the arrangements put in place by the Council 
and the CCG to monitor the delivery of integrated health and 
social care within the Borough.

We will maintain a dialogue with the Senior Leadership Team in 
relation to the on-going developments of Greater Manchester 
devolution and how the impact of 'devo Manc' is being 
considered and managed by the Council.

Future Budget pressures:
The Council's future budgets remain challenging with further 
anticipated funding reductions coupled with increasing demand 
and costs. The Council estimates that in the period to 2017-18 
it will need to address a gross budget gap of £35m. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 
finances effectively to support the sustainable 
delivery of strategic priorities and using appropriate 
cost and performance information to support 
informed decision making.

We will continue to monitor the Council's budgetary 
performance.  We will consider the processes established by the 
Council to identify, manage and monitor the savings proposals 
to address the budget gap.

Risk Management arrangements:
The Council has implemented new risk management 
arrangements in response to our recommendations from prior 
year value for money conclusion work.

This links to the Council's arrangements for 
managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound 
system of internal control, demonstrating and 
applying the principles and values of good 
governance.

During our interim audit, we met with the Risk Manager to 
discuss the arrangements he has been implementing since his 
appointment in September 2015.  We will continue to monitor 
the implementation of his action plan and will be meeting with 
him again in June/July.  A summary of our findings will be 
included in our ISA260 report in August.

Reporting

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and Annual Audit Letter.  We will include our conclusion as 
part of our report on your financial statements, due to be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on 1 August 2016.

P
age 81



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Results of  interim audit work
In addition to the interim work communicated earlier in this Plan on significant and other risks and on our VFM assessment, the findings of our other interim audit work, and 
the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Interim audit area Work performed and findings Summary / Conclusion

Internal audit and 
their work on key 
financial systems

We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 
arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to 
bring to your attention.

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key financial 
systems to date. Internal audit's report on the creditors system identified 
some areas for improvement. 

As a result, we have conducted a more extensive sample of non-pay 
expenditure transactions.  We have not identified any further areas 
impacting on our audit approach from our review of internal audit's work.

Our review of internal audit work identified some findings and recommendations in 
relation to the creditors system.  This resulted in us extending our transaction 
testing with a larger sample of non-pay expenditure transactions being reviewed. 

On page 11, we have stated that there were no significant issues arising from our 
extended transaction testing of creditor and operating expenses.

No further issues have been identified from our review of the work of internal audit. 

Entity level (Council 
wide) controls

We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment 
relevant to the preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has not identified any material weaknesses which are likely to adversely 
impact on the Council's financial statements.

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls operating in 
areas where we consider that  there is a risk of material misstatement to the 
financial statements.

These include the creditors, payroll and housing benefit systems, as well as 
controls surrounding journal entries to the general ledger.

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your attention. 
Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in accordance with our 
documented understanding.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our audit approach.

Transfer of asset 
register

The Council transferred its financial records on non-current assets to a new 
asset register, Civica Asset Management Module during 2015-16. 

We have reviewed the reconciliation between the old and new asset 
registers and tested a sample of data transferred between the systems.

Our work has given us sufficient assurance over the completeness and accuracy of 
data transferred between the asset registers.

15

P
age 82



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Results of  interim audit work (continued)

Interim audit area Work performed and findings Summary / Conclusion

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and procedures as 
part of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not identified 
any material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the 
Council's control environment or financial statements.

To date we have undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions 
recorded for the first ten months of the financial year, by extracting 'unusual' 
entries for further review. 

Our work on journal entries to date has not identified any issues we wish to 
highlight for your attention.

We will complete the testing of journal entries for the final two months of the 
financial year as part of our final accounts visit and report the results of our 
testing in our Audit Findings Report in August 2016.

Group accounts 
boundary assessment

The Council has considered a list of 28 organisations which it has 
relationships with to determine whether group accounts were required. 

Through this assessment, the Council has identified a number of 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The Council has concluded not to produce group accounts on the basis that 
group accounts would not be materially different to the Council's single 
entity financial statements.

We have reviewed the Council's assessment and are satisfied that the 
judgement to not produce group accounts is reasonable.

Updated accumulated 
absences provision
('holiday pay accrual')

The Council has discussed its intention to update the method for estimating 
the accumulated absences provision in relation to non-school employees. 

The new method will be an estimate based on payroll information available 
in mid-March, using the average carry forward from previous years as a 
basis of information to calculate the accrual. 

We are satisfied that the revised method for calculating the accrual is 
reasonable and we have noted that this is in line with the method used in other 
sectors such as the NHS.

The overall value of the non-schools element of the accrual is not material 
(c£0.7m) and the method should result in significant time saving for the finance 
team to support the earlier accounts sign off objective.

Changes to the 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision

Each year the Council is required to calculate a provision for the repayment 
of debt incurred on its capital expenditure. The Council has decided to 
update the method of calculating the provision on pre-2008 debt. 

Previously this was calculated as 4% of the opening capital financing 
requirement on a reducing balance basis. The Council has opted to amend 
the method to charge MRP on a straight line basis over 50 years.

We reviewed the proposal at the draft stage and determined that it was in 
common with a number of other local authorities taking similar approaches, and 
it was not unreasonable, providing the change received approval from full 
Council.

The updated policy was approved at Budget Fixing Council in February 2016.

Recommendations 
from the Prior Year 
audit

All of our recommendations from the prior year have been discussed with 
responsible officers.

All recommendations expected to be implemented at the time of the interim 
audit have been appropriately implemented.  Recommendations in relation to 
the year-end will be reviewed as part of our year-end audit.

16

P
age 83



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Interim audit area Work performed and findings Summary / Conclusion

Register of Interests Based on recommendations made in our prior year audit plan, the Council has 
completed a review of the completeness of information held within its register of 
interests. 

We have cross-referred the information in the Council's review to information held 
on the Companies House website. Our work did not identify any gaps in the 
information held by the Council.

The Council will use this information as the basis of identifying potential related 
party transactions for disclosure in the financial statements.

We are pleased to note the action taken and work performed by the Council 
in this area.  

We are satisfied that the Council has identified a complete listing of 
potential related parties from their review.

We will complete testing of related party disclosures in the financial 
statements as part of the final accounts visit.

Early closedown of 
accounts

Working in close liaison, both the Finance team and ourselves have put 
procedures in place to bring forward the timetable for producing the accounts and 
delivering the audit to be in line with the new requirements set out in the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act two years ahead of the required implementation of 31 
July 2018.

The work completed by the Council included a "soft close" of the ledger as at the 
end of January, allowing us to audit the first ten months of transactions at the 
interim stage of the audit.

The Finance team are on track to provide us with draft unaudited accounts on 6 
June 2016. We aim to report the results of our work in our Audit Findings (ISA260) 
Report at the Audit and Governance Committee on 1 August 2016.

The level of work performed during our interim audit gives a strong 
foundation to take into our final accounts audit visit in June and July.  

Should we achieve our intended sign off date of on or around 1 August, this 
will be a substantial achievement, bringing forward the sign off date from 29 
September in 2014 and 9 September in 2015.

It would effectively would mean the Council has achieved an end of July 
accounts completion two years ahead of the statutory deadline commencing 
in 2018.

Housing Benefits –
payments sample 
testing

We have tested a sample of housing benefit payments for months 1 – 11 to 
supporting records, including evidence to support a valid claim was made and the 
assessment of the claimants' circumstances was accurately based on information 
provided.

Our testing did not identify any issues we wish to bring to your attention.  
We have sufficient assurance that housing benefit payments from months 1 
- 11 have been calculated and accounted for materially accurate.

We will complete our testing of housing benefit payments from month 12 
during our final accounts audit.

PFI Unitary Charge 
payments

We have agreed the unitary charge payments per the accounting models for each 
PFI scheme back to invoices received from the operator.

No significant differences were identified in our testing giving us assurance that the 
accounting models accurately reflect the payments made.

Our work gives us assurance that the PFI models are a materially accurate 
reflection of payments made by the Council.

We will test the disclosure of the PFI liabilities to the accounting models 
during the final accounts audit.

Assurances from
management

As part of our planning work to consider the Council's governance arrangements, 
we have raised a number of questions to management.

In common with previous years, the questions deal with a variety of issues such as 
internal control, risk management, fraud and litigation, and the potential impact of 
these areas on the Council's annual accounts.

During our interim audit we met with members of the finance team to 
discuss our questions. We are aware that responses management are 
being collated and expect to receive these in time for our final accounts 
audit visit in June  2016.

Results of  interim audit work (continued)

17

P
age 84



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

The audit cycle

Key dates

Completion /
reporting 

Debrief
Interim audit 

visit
Final accounts

Visit

February –
March 2016 June – July 2016 August 2016 October 2016

Key phases of our audit

2015-2016

Date Activity

October 2015 - January 2016 Initial planning and various liaison meetings with key officers and Members to inform our 2015-16 audit

February - March 2016 Interim audit on-site visit and initial risk assessment for VFM conclusion

27 April 2016 Meeting with Chief Executive and Director of Finance, including discussion and agreement of the Audit Plan

27 June 2016 Presentation of Audit Plan to Audit and Governance Committee

June - July 2016 Final accounts on-site fieldwork, including weekly progress meetings with the Assistant Director (Finance) and other senior 
finance colleagues

26 July 2016 Audit 'clearance' meeting with Director of Finance and Engagement Lead to discuss and agree the Audit Findings (ISA260) 
Report 

1 August 2016 Present the Audit Findings (ISA260) Report to those charged with governance (Audit & Governance Committee) and target 
date for signing the audit opinion

30 September 2016 Whole of Government Accounts consistency review completed

26 October 2016 Meeting with the Chief Executive and Director of Finance to discuss feedback on our audit approach and agree our Annual 
Audit Letter.

Planning

October 2015  –
January 2016

18

P
age 85



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Fees

£

Council audit - per PSAA guidance 136,373

Grant certification 24,065

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 160,438

Fees and independence

Our fee assumptions include:

� Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list.

� The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly.

� The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations.

� The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly.

Grant certification

� Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited

� Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

Fees for other services

Fees for other services reflect those agreed at the time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any 

changes will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and Annual Audit Letter

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as 

auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services will be included in our Audit 

Findings Report at the conclusion of the audit.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Audit related services:

• Certification of Teachers' Pension Return 4,200

Non-audit services:

• None -

19

P
age 86



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2015-16

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

Our communication plan
Audit 
Plan

Audit 
Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 
charged with governance

�

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 
and expected general content of communications

�

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 
financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 
during the audit and written representations that have been sought

�

Confirmation of independence and objectivity � �

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, relationships and other 
matters which might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 
network firms, together with fees charged.  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

� �

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit �

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 
others which results in material misstatement of the financial 
statements

�

Non compliance with laws and regulations �

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter �

Uncorrected misstatements �

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties �

Significant matters in relation to going concern �

International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, 
prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 
governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.  

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 
while The Audit Findings Report will be issued prior to approval of the financial 
statements  and will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 
with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 
basis, either informally or via a report to the Council.

Respective responsibilities

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/)

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 
in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 
covering finance and governance matters. 

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 
Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 
work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 
Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 
the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

20

P
age 87



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

21

P
age 88



 
 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales No OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP. 

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are 
delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's ads or omissions. 
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details. 

 
 

Pauline Kane 
Director of Resources 
Rochdale Borough Council 
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale 
OL16 1XU 
 
 
19 April 2016 

Dear Pauline  

Planned audit fee for 2016-17 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides for the introduction of a new 
framework for local public audit. Under these provisions, the Audit Commission closed in 
March 2015 and the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government delegated 
some statutory functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional basis. 

The PSAA will oversee the Commission's audit contracts for local government bodies until 
they end in 2018, following the announcement by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government (DCLG) that it will extend transitional arrangements until 2017-18.  The 
PSAA's responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of 
auditors' work. Further information on the PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the 
PSAA website. 

Scale fee 

The PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able 
to provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timescales'.  

There are no planned changes to the overall work programme for local government audited 
bodies for 2016-17, bar the adoption of new measurement requirements for the Highways 
Network Asset.  

CIPFA/LASAAC is expected to confirm, subject to consultation, that the 2016-17 Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom will adopt the measurement 
requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Highways Network Asset. 

The PSAA has determined that there is no reliable and equitable way of establishing the 
volume of additional audit work, and therefore fees required, at each applicable local 
authority to gain assurance over the new financial reporting requirements. Therefore, fees for 
the additional work identified by auditors in 2016-17 will be subject to approval by the PSAA 
under the normal fee variations process. The PSAA expects that 'the additional fees for a 
highway authority will be in the range of £5,000 to £10,000, where authorities are able to 
provide the information required, and the auditor is able to rely on central assurance of the 
models in use'.  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester 
M3 3EB 
 
T +44 (0)161 953 6900 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



 2

The PSAA has proposed that 2016-17 scale audit fees (excluding work completed on the 
Highways Network Asset) are set at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2015-16. 
The Council's scale fee for 2016-17 has been set by the PSAA at £136,373.    

The audit planning process for 2016-17, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

Scope of the audit fee 

Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit 
Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and 
guidance for auditors from April 2015.  The audit of the accounts for 2016-17 will be 
undertaken under this Code, on the basis of the work programme and scale fees set out on 
the  PSAA website. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the 
NAO website. 

The scale fee covers: 

• our audit of your financial statements 
• our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion) 

• our work on your whole of government accounts return. 
 
As outlined above, the fee for any additional work in respect of the Highways Network Asset 
is not included in this fee. 

The PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept 
an objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2015. The 
guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion 
on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
 

Certification of grant claims and returns  

The Council's indicative grant certification fee for 2016-17 has been set by the PSAA at 
£18,600.  This fee covers the cost of certifying the housing benefit subsidy claim only and is 
based on final 2014-15 certification fees. 

The indicative fee for certification work is based on the expectation that you provide the 
auditor with complete and materially accurate claims and returns, with supporting working 
papers, within agreed timeframes. 

Assurance engagements for other schemes will be subject to separate arrangements and fees 
agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves. 

Page 90



 3

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in November 2016 to 
February 2017, including quarterly liaison meetings with the Chief Executive and Director of 
Resources.  Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan 
setting out our findings and details of our audit approach.  

Our final accounts audit and work on the VFM conclusion will be targeted for completion in 
July 2017 and work on the whole of government accounts return in September 2017. 

Our proposed approach and timings are set out in the table below and overleaf. 

Phase of work Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

November 2016- 
February 2017 

Audit Plan The Plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VFM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June to July 2017 Audit Findings 
(ISA260) Report 
to those charged 
with governance 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VFM work for 
the consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VFM conclusion 
and financial 
resilience review 

January to July 
2017 

Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

As above. 

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts 

September 2017 Opinion on the 
WGA return 

This work will be 
completed alongside the 
accounts audit. 

Main Audit fee: £ 

September 2016 34,093 

December 2016              34,093 

March 2017 34,093 

June 2017 34,094 

Total 136,373 

  

Grant Certification:  

March 2017 18,600 

Total: 154,973 

Page 91



 4

Annual Audit 
Letter 

October 2017 Annual Audit 
Letter to the 
Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 

Grant certification June to December 
2017 

Grant 
Certification 
Report 

A report summarising the 
findings of our grant 
certification work 

 

Our team 

The key members of the audit team for 2016-17 are:  

Role Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement Lead Graham Nunns 0113 200 2538 graham.nunns@uk.gt.com 

Engagement   
Senior Manager 

Gareth Mills 0113 200 2535 gareth.mills@uk.gt.com 

Engagement 
Assistant Manager  

Daniel Watson 0161 234 6344 daniel.watson@uk.gt.com 

 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Sarah Howard our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner (sarah.howard@uk.gt.com). 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
 

Graham Nunns 
Engagement Lead 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

 

Page 92



Subject: Risk Management Annual Report 
2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Martin Nixon

Tel: Tel: 01706925415

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report provides an annual summary to the Audit and Governance Committee on 
Risk Management during the 2015/16 financial year.

2 Recommendations

2.1       The Audit and Governance Committee note the report.

3 Background

3.1 This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance with their 
work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management activities. The work of RBC Risk Management is an ongoing requirement 
from the Accounts and Audit Regulations to produce an Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS), with Risk Management processes being an integral part of the AGS. 

Alternatives considered

3.2       Not applicable.

4 Financial Implications

4.1       There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly throughout 
this period of significant change.

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 A number of risk implications are considered within the points under section 10 below.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10 Annual Report
10.1 The Risk Management Framework

The following points all describe contributions to progress within the Risk Management 
Framework, which can be defined as how risk management links with other 
organisational strategies such as Planning, Governance and reporting.   

a) Risk Manager appointed
The Risk Manager vacancy was filled on 1 September 2015 to ensure all aspects of 
the RBC Risk Management strategy were to be embedded and driven forward.

b) Risk Management Group re-established
The Risk Management Group (RMG) is attended by the Risk Manager and 21 Risk 
Champions representing different Council services. The Risk Management Group was 
re-established when meetings were held between 26th– 30th November 2015. The 
agenda included discussion on a structured approach and an agreed timetable to 
refresh the risk registers for all Services.

c) Reporting of Risks
The presence of a Risk Manager has enabled more effective Risk Management 
reporting throughout the organisation. 

Through the recording of risks under risk registers, service management teams 
(SMT’s) have a recognised method to report the risk management progress in their 
service including risks requiring escalation. Risk management is reported as part of 
the quarterly Leadership Dashboard concentrating particularly on any risks scored 
Red under the RAG scoring matrix.

Risk information is also supplied in regular updates from the Risk Manager to the 
Leadership Team, Governance Board and the Audit and Governance Committee. 
Members and senior management are therefore able to make decisions with 
greater knowledge of the potential impact of risk.

d) Governance of Risk Management
Annual self-assessment forms were distributed to all services in May 2016 to rate the 
quality of risk management processes across the Authority. Independent assessment 
of risk management standards is also provided within RBC Internal Audit inspections, 
and the annual External Audit report.

Page 94



10.2 Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the Corporate 
Risk Register. Risk issues are discussed by Directors regularly as an agenda item in 
Leadership Team meetings. The current Corporate Risk Register is attached as 
Appendix 1 for the information of Members.

10.3 Service Risk Management
a) Service Risk Registers Reviewed

All services have reviewed their risk registers ensuring that the risks recorded more 
accurately reflect the current objectives and activities of their division. Guidance has 
been provided by the Risk Manager to ensure that registers are used as fluid 
documents to coordinate the monitoring of risk in the future. The Risk Manager 
attended SMT or risk workshop meetings with 21 services during this process.

b) Coverage of Registers expanded
The coverage of risk management across Council services has also been expanded 
as a result of the review of risk registers. Structured risk identification has closed gaps 
that previously existed within registers. Also new risk registers have now been set up 
for the Estates & Assets, Policy Performance & Improvement, Contact Centre, 
Facilities Management and RDA services – supporting the RBC objective that risk 
management should be embedded at every level of the organisation.

c) Risk Monitoring Activity restored
Refresher training to service management and the renewed spotlight on risk register 
activity has led to the benefit that there is now improved awareness of the requirement 
for ongoing reviews and monitoring. 

10.4 Developing Risk Management Effectiveness
a) Risk Management Training (including Member training)

The unavoidable turnaround of Members and officers makes the need for the Risk 
Manager to provide training in the discipline a necessity. During the year Risk 
Management ‘refresher’ training has been provided to 96 managers and 23 Risk 
Champions across the services, and risk register system training provided to 20 
officers at various sessions.

Risk Management training for Members of the Audit and Governance Committee is 
planned for 23 June 2016.

b) Sharing of best practice with other local authorities
Risk Management Strategy and procedures must be reviewed on a regular basis to 
check that methods are fit-for-purpose in an environment of change. The Risk 
Manager has made efforts to build relationships with colleagues in other local 
authorities, with the intention of sharing best practice. For example, discussions have 
been held with other local Risk Managers regarding alternative methods to structure 
risk registers.

c) Benefits of sharing Claims Insurance statistics
Working alongside the Insurance Team the Risk Manager has promoted the 
distribution of quarterly reports showing the developing costs of insurance claims (split 
between different services). This type of report enables Leadership and the various 
services to analyse the claims data to identify trends or risk issues requiring attention. 
The Insurance Team are currently designing the required format before releasing the 
report on a quarterly basis.

Page 95



d) Identification of Risk Management priority issues
Through a combination of dialogue with the various service teams and analysis of risk 
registers/insurance claims data, the Risk Manager has identified a number of key risk 
issues requiring attention. This assessment of priorities will continue during 2016/17 to 
focus time on the correct risk issues, and therefore maximise the value for money 
derived from use of risk management resources.

Examples of work carried out on priorities identified in 2015/16 include the preparation 
of additional service risk registers, the expansion of ICT risk recording and the 
placement of flood insurance cover for Council properties (following a full assessment 
of the impact and likelihood of the risk).

e) Assistance provided to Insurance ‘Risk Review’ project
There is recognition that our objectives in Risk Management and Insurance are inter-
connected, i.e. work on risk control should reduce the likelihood of future claims (and 
vice versa). For this reason, the Insurance Team have requested the input of the Risk 
Manager to act as a liaison between service teams and the insurance broker when 
discussing the quality of our risk management. This project is planned to be completed 
in 2017.

f) Link4Life Risk Management service
Link4Life has continued to procure RBC risk management services under an agreed 
SLA.  As well as generating additional income for the Council, one of the key benefits 
of providing direct input to and advice on risk management to a strategic partner is the 
increased visibility of any risks which could ultimately impinge upon the achievement of 
Corporate objectives.

11 Risk Management Results.

11.1 The table below shows the outcomes from the Risk Management Leadership 
dashboard for Quarters 3 and 4 2015/16. 

Leadership Dashboard –
Risk Management

Result 
 Q3 

2015/16

Result 
 Q4 

2015/16

Target
2015/16

1. Number of Corporate Register Risks 10 10 Statement 
only

2. Number of Red risks on Corporate Register 0 0 0

3. Number of Red risks on Service Registers 1 0 0

4. Number of Risks where risk score has increased in 
last Quarter

0 0 0

Following the completion of the reviews of all Service risk registers there are no Red-
rated risks to report.

12 Plans for 2016/17

12.1 Risk Management Group to meet on a quarterly basis for delivery of relevant training, 
progress process improvements and share risk management information.

12.2 Complete reviews of the Risk Management Strategy, Framework and Policy 
documents – last updated and approved in 2014.

12.3 Risk Management e-learning course to be made available for all Council staff in 2016.

Page 96



12.4 Bi-monthly meetings intended between Risk Management, Insurance and Safety Team 
officers to share risk information and highlight emerging issues.

12.5 Complete the Risk Management self-assessment process so that areas of weakness 
are identified and corrective action taken.

12.6 Risk Manager to assist Insurance Team and services to complete Aon Risk Review 
Project, as referred to in paragraph 10.4e.

12.7 Risk Manager to contribute to Performance Manager User Group with intention to 
release updated version of risk register system in 2016. System training will be 
required when new system available.

12.8 Risk Manager to monitor whether adequate reviews of Risks and Controls are 
completed as part of maintenance of all risk registers.

12.9 Risk Manager to monitor risk implications of new 2016 Highways Code of Practice.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 97



Appendix 1   Corporate Risk Register

CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild the 
infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Reputational damage..Failure to provide statutory services..Loss of 
staff/resources/life..Financial Loss 

Julian Massel Julian Massel Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for 
accuracy quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for 
accuracy quarterly   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads 
undertaken   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed quarterly, communicated and 
understood    

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) 
for specific purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver, Forward 
Incident and Bronze officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and 
conduct exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2009 Resilience of ICT systems is periodically tested Julian Massel Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Serious injury to or death of a child    ..Intervention by the Government    
..Reputational damage    ..Litigation    ..

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

P
age 98



Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust 
challenge   

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned 
service providers

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is communicated and embedded   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8008 Getting to Good Board is effective (Multi-Agency Board)   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided 
to staff

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe 
practice in schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Injury to or death of a vulnerable adult    ..Corporate manslaughter    
..Intervention by the Government    ..Reputational damage    ..Litigation from 
vulnerable adults or their representatives    ..Loss of income to the Council    
..Social Care provider failure resulting in inability to maintain effective service    
..Unmet need leading to potential harm    ..

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust 
challenge   

Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9003 Quality assurance checks   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9004 Effective management and supervision of staff   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9005 Adult Care Safeguarding Policy is communicated and followed   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 99



 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9009 Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social workers Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 16

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other 
partners

Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR9011 Training and development plans for staff Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 16

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious service and financial 
failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Litigation..Fraud..Judicial Review..Leading to potential: financial loss and/ or 
reputational damage

David Wilcock David Wilcock Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance 
Committee 

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all 
governance issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by external Audit   Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, 
Care Quality Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood 
and followed

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being 
followed

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 100



 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, 
understood and followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability 
and outcome monitoring is embedded

Julian Massel Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance 
with all data control requirements is embedded

Julian Massel Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2016/17 and 2017/18 leading to a failure in legal duty 
(Strategic) - (Operational)
Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Litigation for failure to delivery statutory services..Intervention by central 
government..Major developments/ planned changes/ projects are compromised 
or cannot be completed..Pressure on resources..Potential loss of key 
personnel..Reputational damage..

Pauline Kane Pauline Kane Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated annually and approved 
by Cabinet and Council   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and 
Scrutiny, Council on budget position locally and nationally

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights 
financial challenges   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for 
services   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns 
strategy, people and processes   

Julian Massel Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to 
budget setting   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and 
Members working together)   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 101



CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Reassessment of Council priorities    ..Major developments/ planned changes/ 
projects are compromised or cannot be completed    ..Pressure on resources    
..Potential loss of key personnel    ..Reputational damage    ..Litigation    
..Government intervention    ..

Pauline Kane Pauline Kane Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated annually and approved 
by Cabinet and Council   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and 
Scrutiny, Council on budget position locally and nationally

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights 
financial challenges   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for 
services   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns 
strategy, people and processes   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to 
budget setting   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers 
and Members working together)   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Conflict in community adversely impacts safety and well being    ..Civil unrest 
leads to vandalism and additional financial cost of clean up    ..Reputational 
damage leading to a reduction in investment and prosperity    ..

Julian Massel Julian Massel Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR7001 Community and Cohesion Strategy communicated and 
embedded   

 Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and 
Community Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 102



 *    CRR7003 Extensive community links maintained   Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Oldham to monitor and mitigate risks    Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7005 Interfaith Networks Group in place   Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7006 Multi agency forums/ networks sharing intelligence   Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7007 Community Hub and Consequence Management groups in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7008 Tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Corporate Plan is not achieved    ..Plans for major developments are 
compromised    ..Major projects external to the Council are compromised    
..Reputational damage    ..External investment in the Borough is not attracted    
..Demand for services is increased leading to additional financial pressures    ..

John Searle John Searle Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly 
updated   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied 
consistently   

Donna Bowler Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly 
updated   

Donna Bowler Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad 
news

Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 103



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ Legal) - 
(Operational)
Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Action by Health and Safety Executive, e.g. unlimited fine    ..Action by Police, 
e.g. corporate manslaughter    ..Fatality or serious injury leads to investigation 
incurring time and loss of resources    ..Reputational damage    ..Insurance 
claims/ financial loss    ..Litigation    ..

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and 
being followed   

Nancy Wilson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, 
primarily through e-learning   

 Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and 
adhered to   

 Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the 
Central Health and Safety Committee   

Nancy Wilson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and 
issues highlighted and addressed   

Nancy Wilson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and 
understood   

Pauline Kane Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision 
making   

Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 16

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Risk Consequences Next Review Officer Risk Owner Active  Impact  Likelihood  Score Exposure

Priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan are not delivered    ..The Devolution 
Manchester agenda is not fully understood     ..Members and Staff are not 
engaged or feel able to influence with the wider DevoManc agenda    ..

Steve Rumbelow Steve 
Rumbelow

Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Due Date Implemented

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief 
Executives)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined 
Authority with other Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Councillor Richard Farnell Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Councillor Richard Farnell Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with 
CA/AGMA/Devolution issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 104



Subject: Audit and Governance Committee 
Annual Report 2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: Tel: 01706925452

1 Purpose of Report

1.1To comply with best professional practice, the Audit and Governance Committee is 
advised to complete an annual report to Full Council on the work undertaken by the 
Audit and Governance Committee during the year.

1.2 Attached at Appendix A is the Annual Report for 2015/16 prepared by the Chair in 
consultation with the Head of Internal Audit.

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the draft Annual Report for 2015/16 by the Audit and Governance Committee 
be approved and submitted to Full Council on 20 July 2016.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 To comply with best practice identified within the CIPFA publication: Audit 
Committee: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2013 and in order to 
demonstrate accountability.

3 Background

3.1 Given its role in the governance structure and in promoting the principles of good 
governance, the Audit and Governance Committee should be clear how it 
supports one of the key principles: accountability. It is also important that the Audit 
and Governance Committee is, in turn, held to account on the extent to which it 
has fulfilled its purpose. Aside from the Audit and Governance Committee’s 
requirement to support the Authority’s accountability to the public and 
stakeholders, and support accountability within the Authority, it is also important 
that the Committee itself is held to account.

3.2 The Annual Report for 2015/16 presented in Appendix A is the means by which the 
Audit and Governance Committee demonstrates its accountability to Full Council, 
as the overall governing body of the Authority.

Alternatives considered

3.3 No other options were considered as the production of an Annual Report aligns 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



with best practice guidance.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly 
throughout this period of significant change.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 The key risk of not producing an Annual Report is that the Audit and Governance 
Committee does not demonstrate clear accountability and does not therefore 
comply with best professional practice.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 106



              Appendix A

Audit and Governance Committee 
Annual Report 2015/16

DRAFT

1. FORWARD

By the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 2015/16
Councillor Liam O’Rourke

I am pleased to present the Audit and Governance Committee’s Annual Report. It 
records our progress in providing the degree of independence, questioning, and 
thoroughness required across a wide range of control and corporate governance 
matters 

During the year, the Committee met on several occasions and received reports in 
connection with the full range of issues that fall within our remit.

This report indicates the breadth of the Audit and Governance Committee’s work in 
ensuring that every aspect of the Council’s work should be compliant with standards 
and transparent to its stakeholders. Increasingly, the Committee is receiving reports on 
items such as the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards which ensure that we 
are being kept up to date on recent internal audit developments as well as dealing with 
relevant Council business. I believe that this Annual Report demonstrates our value to 
the Council and the public in ensuring that improvements to the governance of the 
Authority are being delivered.

As Chair, I believe that the Audit and Governance Committee has provided a valuable 
contribution to the development of standards and protocols across a wide range of 
governance areas during what has been a challenging year and has proved its worth 
in helping to ensure that these are implemented across the Council in an effective and 
compliant way.

Looking forward, the Council is facing a period of unprecedented change in order to 
continue to achieve the required budget savings and comply with new statutory 
requirements. The need to maintain effective controls and standards in our public 
services is vital and I believe that a strong Audit and Governance Committee is 
essential to ensure that the Council achieves its objectives effectively in these areas. It 
is my intention in the future that the Audit and Governance Committee will operate in a 
more proactive manner regarding risks to the organisation and, in conjunction with 
officers, continue to identify key risks and ensure that appropriate actions are taken in 
direct response to these in a timely manner.

On a personal level I would like the Committee to continue its work on strengthening 
the Council’s democratic and governance procedures, especially when we consider 
the massive shift taking place in local government.

Finally, I would like to acknowledge the excellent work of the members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee and the supporting officers during the past year.

Page 107



2. BACKGROUND

2.1 What drives governance policy?

The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In discharging this 
overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a sound 
system of control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

Effective corporate governance is a fundamental feature of any successful public 
sector organisation. Corporate governance initially became a major issue after several 
high profile failures in the private sector, such as Enron and Worldcom. As a result 
there were several reviews, the Cadbury and Hempel Committees for example, 
directed at improving governance specifically in the private sector.

The trend for strengthening governance arrangements then spread from the private 
sector to the public sector and resulted in the joint Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(SOLACE) document Delivering Good Governance in Local Government - a 
Framework. The Framework was structured around the six core principles found in the 
Good Governance Standard for Public Services drawn up by an independent 
commission established by CIPFA, the Office for Public Management (OPM) and the 
Joseph Rowntree Foundation.

A sound corporate governance framework involves accountability to service users, 
stakeholders and the wider community, within which authorities take decisions, and 
lead and control their functions, to achieve their objectives. It thereby provides an 
opportunity to demonstrate the positive elements of an authority's business and to 
promote public confidence.

Rochdale Borough Council has adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance based 
on the following six core principles which underpin and define the meaning of good 
governance:

(i) Focussing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community 
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area;

(ii) Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles;

(iii) Promoting the values of the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through behaviour;

(iv) Taking informed and transparent decisions that are subject to effective scrutiny 
and managing risk; 

(v) Developing the capacity and capability of Members to be effective and ensuring 
that officers, including statutory officers, also have the capability and capacity 
to deliver effectively; and

(vi) Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust local public 
accountability.

2.2 Why do we need an Audit and Governance Committee?

While there is no statutory obligation to have such an arrangement, audit committees 
are widely recognised as a core component of effective governance and therefore 
reflect good practice. Rochdale’s Audit and Governance Committee is properly 
constituted and, as such, is given sufficient authority and resources by the Council. In 

Page 108



effect, the Committee has the right to obtain all the information it considers necessary 
and to consult directly with senior managers. In line with best practice from both the 
public and private sectors, the Audit and Governance Committee can report its 
observations and concerns directly to the Council.

A local authority has a duty to ensure that it is fulfilling its responsibility for adequate 
and effective internal control, risk management, and governance, as well as the 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of its activities. The Audit and Governance 
Committee has a key role in overseeing and assessing the internal control, risk 
management, and corporate governance arrangements and advising the Council on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Good corporate governance requires independent, effective assurance about the 
adequacy of financial management and of management arrangements for achieving 
the organisation's objectives. These responsibilities require an independent and 
challenging approach. Through these mechanisms, Committee Members are able to 
use their skills and experiences to influence the Council’s governance, internal control 
processes, and risk management arrangements.

An effective committee can bring many benefits to the Council including: 
• increasing public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial and other 

reporting;
• providing additional assurance through a process of independent and objective 

scrutiny;
• raising awareness of the need for internal control and the implementation of audit 

recommendations; and
• reinforcing the importance and independence of internal audit.

     2.3 What does an Audit and Governance Committee do?

The Audit and Governance Committee’s main responsibilities are to oversee the 
Council’s corporate governance arrangements, the work of Internal Audit, and the 
Council’s response to external audit and other external inspections.

This purpose is reflected in the Committee’s terms of reference which are reviewed 
and adopted each year by Full Council (attached at Appendix 1).

The Committee advises the Council on all matters relating to its corporate governance. 
In doing so, the Committee receives scheduled reports on the following matters:

• reviewing the operation and compliance with the Council’s Code of
Corporate Governance and making recommendations on its content;

• keeping the Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy under review and making 
recommendations to the Council on the content and operation of that Policy;

• reviewing and approving the Annual Governance Statement and ensuring that;

 they properly reflect the risk environment;
 there is reliable evidence to support the disclosures made; and,
 that any necessary improvement actions are being taken;

•  approving the Annual Statement of Accounts;

Page 109



• receiving and reviewing the external auditor’s opinion on the Annual Statement of 
Accounts, and monitoring management’s responses to the issues raised by external 
audit;

• overseeing Internal Audit’s operations, in particular:

 receiving any internal audit strategies, Charter, audit plans, and considering 
progress against such plans as necessary through quarterly reports to Committee;

 receiving Annual Reports on Internal Audit and counter-fraud activities;  

 reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to Internal 
Audit’s recommendations, and matters arising from Internal Audit reports; 

•  receiving the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter, Audit Plans, and any other 
reports and significant matters deemed necessary by the external auditor;

•  reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to
external audit recommendations; and

•  receiving reports on the Risk Management Strategy and the monitoring and review 
of risk management, in order to consider the effectiveness of arrangements.

2.4 How do Officers Support the Committee?

The Audit and Governance Committee is supported by:

• The Director of Resources as Section 151 Officer who is responsible under the law 
for ensuring the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs and who has 
overall responsibility for the arrangements in this area;

• The Monitoring Officer who is required by law to ensure that the Council acts within 
its legal powers at all times;

• The Head of Internal Audit who has a key role to play in supporting the Committee 
because of the importance of the Internal Audit service to governance; and 

• Any other officer of the Council as required. 

3 FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/16
 

This Annual Report for 2015/16 produced by the Audit and Governance Committee 
has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA best practice publication ‘A Toolkit 
for Local Authority Audit Committees’. The report demonstrates how the Audit and 
Governance Committee has fulfilled its terms of reference and how it is fully committed 
to helping to improve the Council’s governance and control environments during what 
should prove to be another very challenging year ahead.

The Committee’s activities during 2015/16 were designed to make a positive 
contribution to the continual improvement of governance arrangements across the 
Council, as well as performing the statutory roles as identified in the Constitution.

Page 110



4 SOME KEY INFORMATION

       4.1 Audit and Governance Committee Membership

The Audit and Governance Committee has 9 core Members, together with two further 
independent members to support standards related issues. Throughout 2015/16 these 
members were as follows:

Councillor Liam O’Rourke - Chair
Councillor Andy Bell - Vice-Chair
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Ray Dutton 
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Peter Winkler
Ann Taylor (independent)
Andrew Underdown (independent) 

       4.2 Key Features of the Audit Committee and its Operation

       The Committee meets CIPFA’s definition of best practice as illustrated below:

Best Practice    Expectation Met Comment

Independence Independent 
from the 
executive and 
scrutiny

√ The Committee reports to the  Council

Number of
Members

3 to 5 members √ The Committee has 9
Members

Number of
meetings

Aligned to 
business needs

√ The frequency of meetings, 4 or 5 times a 
year, complies with best practice and ensures 
all core business is completed in a timely 
manner. Other meetings may be scheduled if 
deemed appropriate to support business 
needs. 

Co-option To be considered 
relative to skills

√ Training is currently provided to
increase Members’ skills; this is assessed on 
an ongoing basis to ensure the Committee 
continues to be effective and to determine 
future training requirements.

Terms of
Reference

Accord with 
suggested
best practice

√ The Committee has adopted
the CIPFA recommended model Terms Of 
Reference and these are reviewed annually to 
ensure that they remain fit for purpose.

Skills and
training

Members have
sufficient skills 
for the job

√ General and specific training is
provided to increase Members’
skills, with an induction for new Members and 
ongoing assessment of any specific needs to 
inform future training plans.

Page 111



4.3 Meetings and Attendance

In line with best practice, the Audit and Governance Committee normally meets 5 times 
per year in June, August, September, December and March. 

Attendance by Members in 2015/16 was over 81%.

5 CORE ACTIVITY 2015/16 

5.1 Terms of Reference

      The Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference are comprehensive, cover all 
main areas and are attached at Appendix 1 to this Annual Report. The Committee’s work 
and outcomes in each of its areas of responsibility are summarised in the following 
subsections.

5.2 Internal Audit

      The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Approved Internal Audit’s Annual Audit Plan;
• Considered regular reports produced by the Head of Internal Audit highlighting internal 

audit work completed, Internal Audit performance against key indicators and any 
significant issues arising during the period;

• Considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report and assurance opinion on the 
Council’s control environment;

• Ensured internal and external audit plans were complementary and provided optimum 
use of the total audit resource;

• Received updates and an Annual Report on Internal Audit’s counter fraud remit and 
activities undertaken;

• Approved Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme to ensure 
compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; and

• Monitored the progress made in the implementation of high and medium priority audit 
recommendations through regular reports received from Internal Audit. 

We continue to provide support to the Internal Audit service to ensure management is 
responsive to recommendations made and agreed.

 5.3 External Audit

The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Considered the external auditor’s Audit Plan and audit fee;
• Considered progress against the plan presented by the external auditor;
• Received and considered all external audit and inspection reports issued in the year 

and considered management’s response to them, ensuring robust and thorough 
responses;

• Reviewed the external assurances report and took appropriate actions in response to 
risks presented;

• Considered the Value for Money conclusions and ensured appropriate actions were 
being taken to address any issues and challenges arising;

• Considered the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter;
• Considered reports on the risk and challenges being faced by Rochdale both now and 

into the future to ensure that an appropriate response and action was being taken by 
the Council; and

 Considered a report on grant claims certifications. 

Page 112



We continue to provide support to external audit to ensure management is responsive to 
recommendations made and agreed.

 5.4 Risk Management

The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Received details of the Risk Management system, how it works and arrangements in 

place for mitigating risks;
• Considered regular reports from the Risk Manager on developments within both 

Service based and Corporate Risk Registers to ensure the Members are aware of any 
emerging risks across the Council and the extent to which the Risk Management 
Strategy is being embedded; and

• Considered and challenged the Corporate Risk Register resulting in amendments 
being made by the Leadership Team.  

We continue to provide support to promote effective Risk Management policies and 
procedures across the Council and ensure best practice is achieved. 

5.5 Internal Control and Governance

The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Considered and approved the updated Governance Framework for the Council;
 Agreed the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and action plans to improve 

identified weaknesses;
 Considered the Council’s response to the Audit Commission’s fraud report of 

November 2014 entitled “Protecting the Public Purse” to ensure that sound 
governance and counter-fraud arrangements are in place and are working as intended;

• Considered and approved changes to the Council’s Employee Code of Conduct, 
subject to revisions proposed by the Members; and

• Considered and approved changes to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers as it 
relates to the initiation of Traffic Regulation Order procedures in the light of anomalies 
which had been identified. 

The Annual Governance Statement is a key document which summarises the Council’s 
governance arrangements and the effectiveness of the arrangements during the year.

5.6 Accounts

The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Received training and guidance on the preparation of the Annual Statement of 

Accounts and the key issues which should be considered prior to approval; 
• Received and considered the external auditor’s report on the accounts, and ensured 

that the Council responded appropriately to the auditor’s comments and 
recommendations; and

• Reviewed and approved the Annual Statement of Accounts, considering whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are any 
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be 
brought to the attention of the Council.

5.7 Specific Issues

The Audit and Governance Committee also considered reports and presentations on the 
following specific issues during the period:
• A draft Risk Based Verification Policy for Housing Benefit and Local Council Tax 

Support Claims in advance of scrutiny at a future meeting of the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and consideration for approval by Cabinet; 

Page 113



• Developments made in procurement strategies and procedures and future challenges 
through a presentation by the Director of STAR procurement hub; and

• A report which provided an update on complaints made pursuant to the Members 
Code of Conduct.

 6. PLANS FOR 2016/17

During 2016/17 the Audit and Governance Committee has consolidated the progress that 
has been made in previous years, and going forward will look to develop further and 
become the recognised champion of good governance for the Council, helping to support 
and address many of the issues which may arise in such a challenging and difficult 
environment. Our priorities for 2016/17 are to continue to meet our duties as specified in 
the Constitution by developing and building on our current status as well as responding to 
and implementing any requirements arising out of the Public Sector Internal Auditing 
Standards and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. For 2016/17 we will: 

• Continue to develop the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee to 
review all governance issues identified;

• Develop the proactive nature of the Committee to facilitate actions by officers to 
ensure that risks are identified earlier in the process and remedial actions taken in a 
more timely fashion in response;

• Continue to drive up standards to ensure the Council is able to meet the demanding 
requirements of the external inspection and assessment regime;

• Continue to review all governance arrangements to ensure the Council adopts the very 
latest best practice;

• Continue to support the work of Internal and External Audit and ensure appropriate 
responses are given to their recommendations;

• Ensure we maintain and further improve our standards in relation to the production of 
accounts;

• Continue to support the Council to manage the risk of fraud and corruption;
• Continue to develop the Audit and Governance Committee to review risk and 

partnerships’ issues in order to safeguard public sector interests;
• Oversee the development of audit plans to evaluate and test controls in operation over 

complex and developing areas such as integrated health and social care; and
• Equip existing and any new Members to fulfil our responsibilities by providing more 

detailed and effective training on all key areas of responsibility including financial 
arrangements and risk management, governance and audit.

Councillor Liam O’Rourke (Chair)
Rochdale Borough Council Audit and Governance Committee 
June 2016

Page 114



Appendix 1

Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference          
              
• To discharge non-executive functions as set out in Part 3 to the Constitution relating to:

o Statement of accounts, pensions etc;
o Miscellaneous functions; for example constitutional matters (including contract rules, 
designation of statutory officers etc); electoral matters, maladministration etc);

• Standards/Code of Conduct issues;
• In exercise of the functions of the CIPFA recommended ‘audit committee’:

o To approve the Annual Governance Statement and monitor achievement;
o To approve the Internal Audit Charter; to review and approve the Internal Audit Annual

Plan and the Risk Management Strategy, considering the effectiveness of the
proposed audit programme in providing adequate assurance over arrangements for
governance, risk management and internal control; to consider Internal Audit reports
arising from the Internal Audit Annual Plan, ensuring that adequate management
responses are made in respect of the findings of audit investigations, and particularly
monitoring the outcomes of responses to individual significant adverse reports on
financial management and internal control; to consider the Internal Audit Annual
Report and to ensure the implementation of appropriate action;

o To review the adequacy of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and related policies
and procedures, to ensure their application and effectiveness;

o To consider the External Audit Plan, the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant
reports and the annual report to those charged with governance on issues arising from
the audit of the Annual Statement of Accounts; and

o To review the Council’s Risk Registers.

Page 115



 

Subject: Audit and Governance Committee 
Effectiveness - Self-Assessment

Status: For Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 27 June 2016
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: Tel: 01706925452

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision: 

1 Purpose of Report

1.1      This report presents a view of compliance of the current Audit and Governance 
Committee against recognised best practice, as well as a view on the effectiveness of 
the Committee, as considered appropriate by the Chair of the Committee. 

2    Recommendations

2.1      It is recommended that the members of the Audit and Governance Committee give 
consideration to and approve the attached Self-Assessment Checklist of compliance 
with best practice (Appendix A) and Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee (Appendix B) which has been produced by the Chair of the 
Audit and Governance Committee in consultation with the Head of Internal Audit.

3 Background

3.1      In December 2013, CIPFA produce guidance entitled Audit Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2013 Edition). This guidance was 
summarised and presented to Audit Committee members on 13 March 2014 and has 
since formed part of the induction process for any new members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. The guidance drew on best practice from both local 
government and of the wider public sector.

3.2      In accordance with this guidance, it was recommended that from time to time, the Audit 
and Governance Committee should undertake a formal review of its effectiveness and 
compliance with best practice. The guidance included a Checklist (attached as 
Appendix A) to provide a means of assessment against recommended practice both to 
support and inform the Audit and Governance Committee. The guidance also included 
an assessment tool (attached as Appendix B) to help Members to consider where the 
Committee is most effective and evaluate where there may be scope to do more. 

3.3      The views expressed in both Appendices A and B are those of the Chair and this report 
is therefore presented to the wider Committee to consider and come to a final 
conclusion as to the outcome and actions arising.

Page 116

Agenda Item 11



4         Outcomes and Conclusion

4.1       The self-assessment and evaluation conclude that the Audit and Governance 
Committee fulfils all of its core objectives, all of which align with best practice. 
Moreover, in general terms, the Committee is effective in supporting and overseeing 
governance throughout the Authority. 

4.2       The key actions arising were as follows:
 Ensure the role and value of the Committee is understood and recognised by 

Full Council;
 Continue to review and challenge the role of the Committee and its interaction 

with other Committees; and
 Continue to assess the Committee against the core knowledge and skills 

framework to inform any future training plans.

5          Alternatives considered

5.1       Not applicable.

6 Financial Implications

6.1       There are no financial implications arising from this report.

7  Legal Implications

7.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

8 Personnel Implications

8.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

9 Corporate Priorities

9.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly throughout 
this period of significant change.

10. Risk Assessment Implications 

10.1     The key risk arising is that the operation of the Audit and Governance Committee does 
not align with best practice and does not therefore effectively monitor and support 
overall governance within the Authority. The checklist and evaluation provide a 
challenge against best practice standards to mitigate this risk. 

11. Equalities Impacts

11.1     Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2     Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Page 117



Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 118



           Appendix A

Audit and Governance Committee – Self-Assessment Checklist June 2016

Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No Comments / action
Audit Committee purpose and governance 
1 Does the Authority have a 

dedicated audit committee?
Y 9 Members with 

membership aligned with 
the political balance of the 
Council

2 Does the audit committee 
report directly to full 
council?

Y Committee produces an 
annual report (first report in 
2016) and reports to Full 
Council via the Chair with 
the ability to raise any 
concerns. There is also a 
right of access to the 
Leadership Team.

3 Do the terms of reference 
clearly set out the purpose 
of the committee in 
accordance with CIPFA’s 
Position Statement?

Y TOR accords with CIPFA 
guidance

4 Is the role and purpose of 
the audit committee 
understood and accepted 
across the Authority?

Y Set out in the Constitution - 
role and purpose 
understood by Members, 
Leadership, Assistant 
Directors and reporting 
officers.  

5 Does the audit committee 
provide support to the 
Authority in meeting the 
requirements of good 
governance?

Y Through coverage of all 
the areas set out in the 
Terms of Reference

6 Are the arrangements to 
hold the committee to 
account for its performance 
operating satisfactorily?

Y Committee produces an 
annual report and reports 
periodically to Full Council. 
Provision at Full Council 
meetings for motions/ 
questions if required.
Action: Ensure the role 
and value of the 
Committee is understood 
and recognised by Full 
Council

Page 119



Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No Comments / action
Functions of the Committee
7 Do the committee’s terms 

of reference explicitly 
address all the core areas 
identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement?

o good governance Y
o assurance 

framework
Y .

o internal audit Y
o external audit Y
o financial reporting Y
o risk management Y
o value for money or 

best value
In part This is covered through the 

work completed and 
assurance provided by 
external audit 

o counter-fraud and 
corruption

Y

8 Is an annual evaluation 
undertaken to assess 
whether the committee is 
fulfilling its terms of 
reference and that 
adequate consideration has 
been given to all core 
areas?

Y Annual report of the 
Committee sets out the 
work undertaken in 
accordance with the Terms 
of Reference.

Core areas from the 
CIPFA guidance 
considered as part of this 
assessment.

9 Has the audit committee 
considered the wider areas 
identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement and 
whether it would be 
appropriate for the 
committee to undertake 
them?

Y The Committee has 
assumed responsibility for 
some of these areas, 
including standards and 
ethics. Assurance on 
treasury management is 
provided through Internal 
Audit coverage. 
Consideration has also 
been given to governance 
and risk matters 
highlighted by other 
committees such as 
Overview and Scrutiny.
Action: Continue to 
review and challenge the 
role of the Committee 
and its interaction with 
other Committees.

10 Where coverage of core 
areas has been found to be 
limited, are plans in place to 
address this?

N/A N/A N/A N/A – coverage of core 
areas is felt to be sufficient

Page 120



Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No Comments / action
11 Has the committee 

maintained its non-advisory 
role by not taking on any 
decision-making powers 
that are not in line with its 
core purpose?

Y

Membership and support
12 Has an effective audit 

committee structure and 
composition of the 
committee been selected?
This should include:

Y

o separation from the 
executive

Y

o an appropriate mix 
of knowledge and 
skills among the 
membership

Y

o a size of committee 
that is not unwieldy

Y

o where independent 
members are used, 
that they have been 
appointed using an 
appropriate process.

N/A N/A N/A

13 Does the chair of the 
committee have appropriate 
knowledge and skills?

Y Chair has qualifications 
which support his role on 
the Committee and has 
undertaken Member 
training and Audit 
Committee training.

14 Are arrangements in place 
to support the committee 
with briefings and training?

Y Training programme has 
been provided to cover 
audit, governance, risk and 
financial accounts and 
continues to be updated 
and refreshed. Other 
briefings covered include 
procurement and counter 
fraud activities. Members 
will also ask for training as 
required. 

15 Has the membership of the 
committee been assessed 
against the core knowledge 
and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory?

Y This was last completed in 
2014 and little change in 
the Committee has 
occurred since then. 
Further consideration to be 
given in the light of 
membership changes in 
May 2016.
Action: Continue to 

Page 121



Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No Comments / action
assess the Committee 
against the core 
knowledge and skills 
framework to inform any 
future training plans.

16 Does the committee have 
good working relations with 
key people and 
organisations, including 
external audit, internal audit 
and the chief financial 
officer?

Y

17 Is adequate secretariat and 
administrative support to 
the committee provided?

Y Governance and 
Committee Services 
provide support. 

Effectiveness of the committee
18 Has the committee 

obtained feedback on its 
performance from those 
interacting with the 
committee or relying on its 
work?

N No formal feedback on 
performance however the 
Committee does get 
feedback from external 
audit. 

19 Has the committee 
evaluated whether and how 
it is adding value to the 
organisation?

Y As part of the annual 
report and the self-
assessment process.

20 Does the committee have 
an action plan to improve 
any areas of weakness?

Y Actions have been detailed 
from the annual self-
assessment process.

Page 122



Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee     Appendix B                           

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value 
by supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee can add 
value and provide evidence of effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 
strength and weakness 

Overall 
assessment: 
5 – 1 

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision 
making.

Providing robust review of the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) and the assurances underpinning 
it. 
Working with key members to improve their 
understanding of the AGS and their contribution to 
it. 
Supporting reviews/ audits of governance 
arrangements. 
Participating in self-assessments of governance 
arrangements. 
Working with partner audit committees to review 
governance arrangements in partnerships.

Robust review of the draft AGS and 
review of the final version. Review of 
opinions to support the AGS from 
internal and external audit, including 
Assurance Framework. 
Review of reports from the officer 
Governance Board which provide 
assurance of the governance 
arrangements in place in the Council.
Review of periodic and annual risk 
management reports. 

4

Contributing to the 
development of an effective 
control environment.

Monitoring the implementation of recommendations 
from auditors. 
Encouraging ownership of the internal control 
framework by appropriate managers. 
Raising significant concerns over controls with 
appropriate senior managers.

Progress report from internal audit on a 
regular basis notes implementation of 
recommendations and highlights high 
priority recommendations outstanding.
Managers asked to attend Committee 
to discuss particular reports as 
required. 
Areas of work overseen by the 
Committee, e.g. development of STAR 
procurement hub. 

5

P
age 123



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value 
by supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee can add 
value and provide evidence of effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 
strength and weakness 

Overall 
assessment: 
5 – 1 

Supporting the establishment 
of arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks.

Reviewing risk management arrangements and 
their effectiveness, eg risk management 
benchmarking. 
Monitoring improvements. 
Holding risk owners to account for major/ strategic 
risks.

Regular review of the Corporate Risk 
Register and approval of the Risk 
Management Strategy, Framework and 
Policy. 
Regular updates provided by the Risk 
Manager on progress made in 
implementing the Risk Management 
Strategy. 

4

Advising on the adequacy of 
the assurance framework 
and considering whether 
assurance is deployed 
efficiently and effectively.

Specifying its assurance needs, identifying gaps or 
overlaps in assurance. 
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering and 
reporting. 
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance 
providers, eg internal audit, risk management, 
external audit

Reports received from the officer 
Governance Board. Framework of 
assurance (included as part of the 
Internal Audit Annual Report) monitored 
by this group and used to support audit 
opinions and approval of the AGS.  
Regular reporting into the Committee 
from internal audit, external audit and 
risk management.

4

Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning 
its organisational 
independence.

Reviewing the audit charter and functional reporting 
arrangements. 
Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit 
arrangements and supporting improvements.

Committee approves the Internal Audit 
Charter which includes structure and 
reporting arrangements. 
Committee approves the process for 
external evaluation of Internal Audit 
against current standards to support the 
self-assessment performed by Internal 
Audit and reported to the Committee via 
the Annual Report. 
Close liaison with Internal Audit by 
Members throughout the year.

5

P
age 124



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value 
by supporting 
improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee can add 
value and provide evidence of effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 
strength and weakness 

Overall 
assessment: 
5 – 1 

Aiding the achievement of 
the authority’s goals and 
objectives through helping to 
ensure appropriate 
governance, risk, control and 
assurance arrangements.

Reviewing major projects and programmes to 
ensure that governance and assurance 
arrangements are in place. 
Reviewing the effectiveness of performance 
management arrangements.

Work included in the internal and 
external audit plans.  

4

Supporting the development 
of robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money.

Ensuring that assurance on value for money 
arrangements is included in the assurances 
received by the audit committee. 
Considering how performance in value for money is 
evaluated as part of the AGS.

Financial Regulations and Contract 
Procedure Rules in place and approved 
by Members.
External evaluation of value for money 
performed by external audit on an 
annual basis and outcomes reported to 
this Committee.  

3

Helping the Authority to 
implement the values of 
good governance, including 
effective arrangements for 
countering fraud bribery and 
corruption risks.

Reviewing arrangements against the standards set 
out in CIPFA’s Managing the Risk of Fraud (Red 
Book 2), Protecting the Public Purse and Fighting 
Fraud Locally initiatives. 
Reviewing fraud risks and the effectiveness of the 
organisation’s strategy to address those risks. 
Assessing the effectiveness of ethical governance 
arrangements for both staff and governors.

Regular reports received by the 
Committee that cover all areas of anti-
fraud work carried out across the 
Council.
Oversight of robust governance 
arrangements including Codes of 
Conduct.

4

Promoting effective public 
reporting to the Authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and measures to 
improve transparency and 
accountability.

Improving how the Authority discharges its 
responsibilities for public reporting; for example, 
better targeting at the audience, plain English. 
Reviewing whether decision making through 
partnership organisations remains transparent and 
publicly accessible and encouraging greater 
transparency

Committee encourages full compliance 
with Transparency Code and press 
releases from such as fraud 
prosecutions. 
Information on the Council’s website. 
Committee reviews the AGS to ensure 
it reflects current levels of governance 
and any actions arising to improve. 

4

P
age 125



Assessment key
5   Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the Committee is actively supporting improvements across all aspects of this area.   

The improvements made are clearly identifiable.
4   Clear evidence from some sources that the Committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some aspects of this area.
3   The Committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their impact 

but there are also significant gaps.
2   There is some evidence that the Committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited.
1   No evidence can be found that the Audit and Governance Committee has supported improvements in this area.

P
age 126


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	4 Internal Audit - Quarter 4 Report 2015/16
	5 Internal Audit - Annual Report 2015/16
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit - Annual Report 2015/16
	Append. 2 for Internal Audit - Annual Report 2015/16

	6 Internal Audit - Annual Fraud Report 2015/16
	7 RBC Audit Plan 2015-16 - FINAL
	8 RBC 2016-17 fee letter FINAL
	9 Risk Management Annual Report 2015/16
	10 Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2015/16
	11 Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-Assessment

